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AIR INTERNATIONAL THERMAL (UNITED KINGDOM]) LIMITED

REGISTERED NUMBER: 10591250

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

Fixed assets

Tangible assets
investments

Current assets

Debtors: amounts falling due within one year
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital
Profit and loss account

3,579,472
18,769

3,598,241

{3,543,510)

2019

23,227
3,774

27,001

54,731

81,732

81,732

1,000
80,732

81,732

2018

£

27131

3,774

30,905
2,372,122
4,882
2,377,004

(2,325,947)

51,057

81,962

81,962

1,000

80,962

81,962

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies subject
to the small companies regime and in accordance with the provisions of FRS 102 Section 1A - small entities.

The financial statements have been delivered in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies subject

to the small companies regime.

The Company has opted not to file the statement of comprehensive income in accordance with provisions
applicable tc companies subject to the small companies’ regime.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf by:

VJ H Q\Lﬁﬁ/

Director
Date: 24/Sept/2020

The notes on pages 2 to 10 form part of these financial statements.
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AIR INTERNATIONAL THERMAL (UNITED KINGDOM) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

1. General information

Air International Thermal (United Kingdom} Limited is a private company limited by shares, and
incorporated in England and Wales. The address of the registered office is 10 Norwich Street, London,
EC4A 1BD.

2.1

2.2

2.3

Accounting policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise
specified within these accounting pelicies and in accordance with Section 1A of Financial Reporting
Standard 102, the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland and
the Companies Act 2006.

The following principal accounting policies have been applied:
Exemption from preparing consolidated financial statements

The Company is a parent Company that is also a subsidiary included in the consoclidated financial
statements of its immediate parent undertaking established under the law of a non-EEA state and is
therefore exempt from the requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements under section
401 of the Companies Act 2008,

Going concern

The company made a net loss in the year of £230 (2018: net profit of £220,313) and has net assets
of £81,732 (2018: £81,962). The company is still dependent on financial support from other group
companies, as all revenue is generated through management charges to subsidiaries in the group.

The directors have considered relevant information, including the annual budget, forecast future cash
flows and the impact of subsequent events in making their assessment. The COViD-19 pandemic
and the ensuing eccnomic shutdown has impacted the company's operations. In response {o the
CQOVID-19 pandemic, the Directors have performed a robust analysis of forecast future cash flows
taking into account the potential impact on the business of possible future scenarios arising from the
impact of COVID-19. This analysis also considers the effectiveness of available measures to assist in
mitigating the impact.

Based on these assessments and having regard to the resources available to the entity, the Directors
have conciuded that there is no material uncertainty and that they can continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements. The Directors consider a reasonable expectation
that the company will continue in operational existence for the forseeable future of minimum 12
months from signing the balance sheet. The parent company has confirmed its continued support for
the company.
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AIR INTERNATIONAL THERMAL (UNITED KINGDOM) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2. Accounting policies (continued)

24

25

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

The Company's functional and presentational currency is GBP and these financial statements are
rounded to the nearest £.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions.

At each period end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Non-
monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction and non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate
when fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the Statement of Comprehensive [ncome within ‘finance income or costs'. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within
‘other operating income’.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured as the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates, value added tax and other sales
taxes. The following criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Rendering of services
Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised in the period in which the services are

provided in accordance with the stage of completion of the contract when all of the following
conditions are satisfied:

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the Company will receive the consideration due under the contract;

. the stage of completion of the contract at the end of the reporting period can be measured
reliably; and

. the costs incurred and the costs to complete the contract can be measured reliably.

Revenue is generated by recharging certain expenses occured during the year with an agreed mark
up to its subsidiary.
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AIR INTERNATIONAL THERMAL (UNITED KINGDOM) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.6

27

2.8

29

Accounting policies {continued)

Finance costs

Finance costs are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the term of the debt
using the effective interest method so that the amount charged is at a constant rate on the carrying
amount. Issue costs are initially recognised as a reduction in the proceeds of the associated capital
instrument.

Pensions
Defined contribution pension plan

The Company operates a defined contribution plan for its employees. A defined contribution plan is a
pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. Once the
contributions have been paid the Company has no further payment obligations.

The contributions are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when
they fall due. Amounts not paid are shown in accruals as a liability in the Balance Sheet. The assets
of the plan are held separately from the Company in independently administered funds.

Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income, except that a charge attributable to an item of income and expense
recognised as other comprehensive income or to an item recognised directly in equity is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
operates and generates income.

Deferred tax balances are recognised in respect of all timing differences that have criginated but not
reversed by the Balance Sheet date, except that:

. The recognition of deferred tax assets is limited to the extent that it is probable that they will be
recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits; and
. Any deferred tax balances are reversed if and when all conditions for retaining associated tax

allowances have been met.

Deferred tax balances are not recognised in respect of permanent differences except in respect of
business combinations, when deferred tax is recognised on the differences between the fair values of
assets acquired and the future tax deductions available for them and the differences between the fair
values of liabilities acquired and the amount that will be assessed for tax. Deferred tax is determined
using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets under the cost model are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.
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AIR INTERNATIONAL THERMAL (UNITED KINGDOM) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2. Accounting policies {continued)

2.9 Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Depreciation is charged so as to allocate the cost of assets less their residual value over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.

Depreciation is provided on the following basis:

Office equipment - 25% Straight line basis
D&D in progress - Not depreciated

The assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted
prospectively if appropriate, or if there is an indication of a significant change since the last reporting
date.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.10 Valuation of investments

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less accumulated impairment.

Investments in unlisted Company shares, whose market value can be reliably determined, are
remeasured to market value at each balance sheet date. Gains and losses on remeasurement are
recegnised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period. Where market value cannot
be reliably determined, such investments are stated at historic cost less impairment.

Investments in listed company shares are remeasured 0 market value at each Balance Sheet date.
Gains and losses on remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss for the period.

2.11 Debtors

Short term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any impairment. Loans receivable are
measured initially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are measured subseguently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty
on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in no
more than three months from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

2.13 Creditors

Short ferm creditors are measured at the transaction price. Other financial liabilities, including bank
loans, are measured initially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are measured subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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AIR INTERNATIONAL THERMAL (UNITED KINGDOM) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2, Accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Provisions for liabilities

Pravisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Company a legal or constructive
obligation that probably requires settlement by & transfer of economic benefit, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Pravisions are charged as an expense to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year that
the Company becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the
Balance Shest date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant
risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet.

2.15 Financial instruments

The Company only enters into basic financial instrument transactions that result in the recognition of
financial assets and liabilities like trade and other debtors and creditors, loans from banks and other
third parties, loans to related parties and investments in ordinary shares.

Debt instruments (other than those wholly repayable or receivable within one year), including loans
and other accounts receivable and payable, are initially measured at present value of the future cash
flows and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Debt instruments that
are payable or receivable within one year, typically trade debtors and creditors, are measured, initially
and subsequently, at the undiscounted amount of the cash or other consideration expected to be paid
or received. However, if the arrangements of a short-term instrument constitute a financing
transaction, like the payment of a trade debt deferred beyond normal business terms or in case of an
out-right short-term loan that is not at market rate, the financial asset or liability is measured, initially
at the present value of future cash flows discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt
instrument and subsequently at amortised cost, uniess it qualifies as a loan from a director in the
case of a smalt company, or a public benefit entity concessionary loan.

Investments in non-derivative instruments that are equity to the issuer are measured:

. at fair value with changes recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income if the shares
are publicly traded or their fair value can otherwise be measured reliably;

. at cost less impairment for all other investments.

Financial assets that are measured at cost and amortised cost are assessed at the end of each
reporting period for objective evidence of impairment. If objective evidence of impairment is found, an
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between an asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the
asset's original effective interest rate. If a financial asset has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract.

For financial assets measured at cost less impairment, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between an asset's carrying amcunt and best estimate of the recoverable amount, which is
an approximation of the amount that the Company would receive for the asset if it were to be sold at
the balance sheet date.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance Sheet when
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AIR INTERNATIONAL THERMAL (UNITED KINGDOM) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.15 Financial instruments (continued)

there is an enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3. Employees

The average monthly number of employees, including directors, during the year was 5 (2018 - 6).

4, Tangible fixed assets
Office D&D in
equipment progress Total
£ £ £

Cost or vajuation
At 1 January 2019 38,976 - 38,976
Additions - 5,840 5,840
At 31 December 2019 38,976 5,840 44,816
Depreciation
At 1 January 2019 11,845 - 11,845
Charge for the year on owned assets 9,744 - 9,744
At 31 December 2019 21,589 - 21,589
Net book value
At 31 December 2019 17,387 5,840 23,227
At 31 December 2018 27,131 - 27,131
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AIR INTERNATIONAL THERMAL {(UNITED KINGDOM) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

5. Fixed asset investments

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2019

At 31 December 2019

Subsidiary undertaking

The following was a subsidiary undertaking of the Company:

Name

Air International Thermal (Slovakia) s.r.o.

6. Debtors

Amounts owed by group undertakings
Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income
Deferred taxation

Investments
in
subsidiary
companies
£
3,774
3,774
Class of
Registered office shares Holding
AC Diplomat, Pailsady  Ordinary 99%
29/A, 811 06, Bratislava,
Slovakia
2019 2018
£ £
3,553,382 2,341,103
12,263 13,327
13,827 7,652
- 10,040
3,579,472 2,372,122
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AIR INTERNATIONAL THERMAL (UNITED KINGDOM) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

7. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
2019 2018
£ £
Trade creditors 50,668 23,370
Corporation tax 4,892 32.804
Other taxation and social security - 5,223
Other creditors 968 11,017
Accruals and deferred income 90,303 225,488
Amounts owed to group undertakings 3,396,679 2,028,045
3,543,510 2,325,947
2. Deferred taxation
2019
£
At beginning of year 10,040
Charged to profit or loss (10,040)
At end of year -
The deferred tax asset is made up as follows:
2019 2018
£ £
Accelerated capital allowances - 10,040
- 10,040
9. Share capital
2019 2018
£ £
Allotted, called up and fully paid
1,000 (2018 - 1,000) Ordinary shares of £1.00 each 1,000 1,000
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AIR INTERNATIONAL THERMAL {UNITED KINGDOM) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

10.

1.

12.

Pension commitments

The company operates a defined contributions pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the company in an independently administered fund. The pension cost charge
represent contributions payable by the company to the fund and amounted to £5,479 (2018: £3,214 ). At

the year end, £968 was outstanding to the fund.

Commitments under operating leases

At 31 December 2019 the Company had future minimum lease paymenis under non-cancellable
operating leases as follows:

2019 2018

£ £

Not later than 1 year 18,179 15,705
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 3,243 40,369
21,422 56,074

Auditors’ information

The auditors' report on the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 was unqualified.

The audit report was signed by Rajeev Shaunak (FCA) (Senior Statutory Auditor) on behalf of MHA
Macintyre Hudson.
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HONG KONG AOTECAR INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

Auditor’s Report

Tian Zhi Ye Zi [2020] No. 23820

{English transiation Is for reference only. Should there be any
inconsistency between the Chinese and English versions, the Chinese

version shail prevail.]
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AUDITGR’S REPGRT
(English version for reference only)

Baker Tilly China [2020] No.23820

To the HONG KONG AOTECAR INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED:

1. Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of HONG KONG AOTECAR INVESTMENT €O,
LIMITED (the "Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet and the
company’s balance sheet as at 31 December 2019, the consolidated income statement and
the company’s income statement, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the
company’s statement of cash flows, the consolidated statement of changes in owners'
equity and the company’s statement of changes in owners’ equity for the year then ended,

and notes to the financial statements,

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position and financial position of the Company as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated and the company’s results of operations aud cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (the
"ASBE"}

2. Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing (the “CSA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the CSA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have abtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with the ASBE and for design, implement and maintain such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

eImor,



In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

4. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errors, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with CSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinian. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal centrol.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinian on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty

2



exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw users' attention in our auditor’s report to the reiated disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a

going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence on financial information of the
entities or operating activities of the Company so as to express an audit opinion on the
financial statements, We are responsible for guidance, supervision and execution of the

group audit, and we assume full responsibility te the audit opinion thereon.

We communicate to those charged with governance, among other matters, on the planned
audit scope, timing and significant audit findings, including any signiticant deficiencles in

internal controls that we identified during our audit.

“"I‘./i"?
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This auditor's report and the accompanying financial statements are English tronstation of the Chinese auditor’s

report. In case any inconsistencies between the twao reports, the Chinese version shall prevail.



Consolidated Balance Sheet

Prepared by, HONG KON 47 =047 NV ZSTMENT €O, LIMITED December 31, 2019 Monetary unit” CNY

hefon) Ending balance DBeginning balance Note No.
Current assets:
Cash and cash equis 2e=mps 166.924,140.80 82,145,755.12 VI 1
A Settlement reserse
& Loans 1o banks am .oe tmrea s
Trading financial 2ssets
Financial assets ai &0 «aue ot wods md losses
Derivative financia! ==
Notes receivable
Accounts receivabla 288.324,269.70 263,349,179.58 VL
Accounis receivabis Tmros 21.497.035.66 26,124.583.99 VL3
Prepayments 20,858,353.81 31,147,702.33 VL. 4
A Premium receivab=
A Reinsurance acooan: mmi av=
A Reinsurance reservs mo=nxmc
Other receivables 19,881,00§.57 25,592,790.11 V1.5
Including: interest recen e
dividends receivable
A Buying back the saie of {trrancial assets
Inventories 145,367,983.74 119,496,976.25 VL &
Contract assets
Assets classified as hew T 2
Non-currene assets due withnp o yor 505,019.21 VI 7
Other current assets 17,344,506.90 5,009,353.60 V1.
Tocs carTENt Bwety 680,702,311.39 552,866,340.98
Nop-current assets:
A\ Loans released and moneyv advanced
Investments in debt securities
Available-for-sale financial assets
Other Investinents in debt securities
Held-to-maturity investment
Long-term receivables
Long-tenn equity invesuo=rx 200,688,795.24 194,730,133.38 VI.9
Investment in other egum munmmems
Other non-current finareal saen
Investment property 17,335,316.56 18,304,144.61 Y1 10
Fixed assets 239,704,411.29 173,814,436.48 VL 11
Construction in process 38,178,138.68 108,418 266.18 V1 12
Bearer biological assets
Gil and gas assets
Usufruet assets
Intangible assets 198,029,544.65 83,056,862.81 VI 13
Development expenditurss 152,479,834.03 202,046,050.14 VI H4
Goadwill 341,777,476.23 450,205,571.51 VI I5
Long-term deferred expensas 5,751,030.41 5,947 80755 VI 16
Deferred income Lax asse1s 56,155,304 35 42.015,424.05 VI 17
Other non-current asseis 20,222,178 46 6.594,516.69 VI L8
Total non-current assets 1,270,322,029.90 1,285,133,213.40
Total assets 1,951,024,341.29 1,837,999,554.38

Legal Representative: Zhang Yongming

Director of Accountancy: Meng Jingyan

Director of Accounting Department: Zeng Fenghuan




Consolidated Balance Sheet (continue)

Prepared v TROND

<7 LOTECAR INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED December 31, 2019 Monetary unit: CNY
Irem Endiag balance Beginning balance Note No.

Current bxbifties
Shor=7r wwe 297,368,690.52 156,389 988.00 V1. 19

A Losr &e s T e _aoh

D Lo T oer e

Tradios Tamc i

Finamoz, cceaiross £ S5 «aiee dough profits and losses

Derivmve fmonmy arn

Noiss mrosme 69.921,918.81 112,781.081.20 VI 20
Accoumms Tmmzme 241.575,985.60 273,241 476 .01 VI 21
Recamon: T aoane. 4.345,060.00 20,367.71 VL 22
Conroes =

O Fmmes e ows r -omurchose

A Detvre ot 2o 2 J2posit

A Funos s ram semroye ading

D Funas %y mo=rwroomg e—oovis trading

Pmpko o benefr ot 13,058,891.55 15,192 981.94 Vi 23
Tax and surcharges pavable 12,246,496 52 5,504,331.23 V1. 24
Other pay alics 407 315,602.01 161.114,684.96 V1. 25
Including: interest pavable 557,181.98 V1. 25

o

A Senvice mese md conmmussion payable

A Reinswancs wooumms genvablie

Liabilitess chmsiics @ hoxd for sale

Non-cirm anumes aue aithin one vear 16,184,300.37 V1. 26
Other current hiabilsites

Total current Habilities 1,062,016,945.38 724,244 911.05

Noun-currepd linbitities;

I\ Reserve for insurance contracts
Long-term loans 15,505,398.57 31,904,970.12 V1. 27
Bonds pavable

Including peafarred sick

DRI NNl

T.ease fuan, =

Long-ter vz 10.377,027.18 6,806,282.72 V1. 28
Long-tarm =wmvon = Tencs pavable 2,198,648.38 1,275,067 48 V1 29
Estimated liabilities 16,860,129.38 14,763,945.02 VL 30—‘
Deferred revenuss 1,188,000.00 1,320,000.00 VI 31
Deferred income tax liabilities 23,411, 687.49 26,572,964.79 V9L i7
Other non—current fiabilides:

Tatal »ow-current liabilities 69,540,891.00 82,647,230.13

Total liabilities 1,131,557,836.38 806,892,141.18

Owners' equity
Paid in capna £59,161,408 36 85%.161,408 .36 V1. 32
Other cyum oD
Inciuding. pratervad stocks
Capital Resenve

Less: reasemy stock
Other comprzhemsive mmcomes 44,894 251 57 31,329,041.59 V1 33
Special resernve

Surplus reserve

A Geperal risk reserve

Undistributed profit -84 589 15502 140,616,963.25 Vi 34
Total equity atiributable to ownezs of the parent company 819,466,504.91 1,031167,413.20
Minority equity
Teotal owner's equity 819,466,504 91 1,031,107,413.20
Total liabilities and owner's eguity 1,951,024 341.29 1,837,999,554 38
Legal Representative: Zhang Yongming Director of Accountancy: Meng Jingyan Director of Accounting Department: Zeng Fenghuan



Ceonsolidated Income Statement

Prepared by HONG KONG AOTECAR INVESTMENT CO.. LIMITED

Yew 2019

Monetary unirz CNY

lsm

Current period

Priar perind

Notz No.

L Total operating revenur

976,212,58343

1,101,275.911.32

including: fevenue

976,212, 583.43

1,101,275.911.32

V.35

2 bnterest sevenue

& Egmed prémivm

A Handling chaspes and commission revenue

L Totai aperating cost

§.120.728.041.83

1.139,094,538.91

Including: operating cost

903,292,773.20

4969.077.748.43

VE3S

A bntevest expenditures

& Handling chaspes and commission expenises

4 Swrender value

4 Netamount of compensation expenses

A Net amount ef reserves (or insumnce conwact

A Policy dividend expenditures

& Reinsurance expanses

Tax and surehasges

782293 1%

1,149,682.95

Selling expenses

2912537297

26,601,802, 55

Administrative expences

125,874,327 55

£34,58R, 727.97

Restarch and developmemi expense

43,425.254.52

1.238.900.65

Financial expenses

1722802045

643767641

¥1 37

Including: inezrest expense

11,113.547.08

10,490 67762

V.37

intererst income

BR7,860.65

J18,238.72

V.37

Plus; Other jocpmyg

2.054.418.25

2.690,796.59

vi.3g

Invesiment income fless 1o be listed nith ©7)

21,033.028.58

27,949,96937

Vi 39

Including: Income fiom i e ises and join]
~entancs

21,033,078.58

27,949 46937

V139

Income fom derecogrition of financial zssets measured m)
amortized cosi (loss 1o be Bisted with *-""y

A Exchanpe income (loss to be listed with =-7)

Net exposure bedge income (1oss o be listed with “.™)

Income from changey in fair value (loss to be Ested with =)

Credit impairment loss (toss to be listed with -7}

-2,966.840.22

VL 40

Asset impainment loss (loss to be listed with “-")

-119,070,009.70

-5.977,862.24

VL 41

Gains from asset disposat (fass 1o he listed with “-")

244871 78

-15,767.21

VL 2

|I0. Operating profits (faases fo be disted with *.*)

-243,709,133.27

-13,202,991.08

Plus: pen-cpeemting income

459.829.98

5787137

V1 43

Less:

79.417.06

318,002 50

V1 44

P I3
TV. Total profits (tolal 1051 to be livted with *—")

24331932035

<13, 46512228

16532 INcome 14 expenscs

+18.113.202 08

-14.920,163.09

VIL45

V. Nel profits {met toss to be listed wilh “—")

+228,206,118.27

£.457.040.88

Inchuding: Net profic realized by the aserged pamy before the merger

(T i by business

1.Continnous operating el profil

-225.205,218.27

1,457,040.86

2, Discontinusd operating net profit

(H) Classification by awnerstup

L.Minoriey interest ingome

-225.206.118.27

1,452,040 88

2N prvfit attributabile 1o owners of the paren! company

VI. Other camprrehensive income afer 19y

13,565.200.98

10,199,493, 68

Nei after-tax amount of other comprehensive income stuibuiable 1o he owaer;
of the paren| company

13,565,200.9%

10,199,493.68

1) Othex comnpichimsive income that ¢annot be rectassified into profit or loss

1. Changes arising from re-measurement of ot lisbilisies or net asgets of
defined benefit plan

2. Other comprehensive income thar cannok be sansferred to profit or loss|
under equity method

3. Changes in fair value of other cquity instremest investmenls

4. Chompes in fair value of coterprise’s oan credit risk -
{11} Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to painc or losees in fanme

£1,565,209.5%

16,199,493 68

1. Osher comprehensive incons that can be ransferred 1o profit and loss
undes equity method

2. Changes 1 fair vabue of other debt investoent

3. Profit and loas from chanpss in fadr value of availsbie for safe finznciall

4. Amount of financial assets teclassifiod into other hensy
e

[Resels
incam

5_ Profit and loss of beld 10 manyity investmen reclassified as availabie!
Tor sals financial assels

6. Provision for credil impaimment of other debt investment

7.Cash flow hedping reserve (cBecrive pam of cash Oow hedging profit}
and loss)

8. Transfaton difference of foreign currency financial statements.

13,565 209.98

11.199.493.68

5. Others

Net aficr-tax amount of pthes comprehensive incoms anributabie ro muneriny
sharehoiders

VIL Tonai comprehensive income

-211,640,908.29

11,656,534.36

Tota) camprehensive income aturitable 1o gwaers of (he parens company

~211.640,908.29

11,656.334.56

Tota) comprebensive income anribuwble to the minority shazchol

VLI Earnings per share

€1) Basic eamnings per share

L ¢2) Diluted eamings per share

Legal Representative: Zhang Yorgming Director of Acceuntancy: Meug Jingran

Dircctor of Acccunting Deparument: Zeng Fenghusn



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Zrecarzd byt HONG KONG AQTECAR INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Year 2019 Monetary unit: CNY
Item Current period Prior period Note No.
L i Sow generated from operating activities:
- =iz r=e=hved from sales of goods or rendering of services 912,664,672.67 1.067,311,319.49
_ - awrease in customer’s deposits and interbank placements
- == merease in [oans from the Central Bank
{1 < mcrease in Joans from other financial institutions
— - xb received from receiving premium of original insurance contract
|~ cash received from reinsurance business
. = mcrease from policybolders’ deposits and deposis of investment
", -~ xab received from interests, handling charges and commissions
== ‘ncyease in loans from other banks
<= mcrease in repurchase operating capital T
~2r mash received from acting sales of securities
. awdprs of 1ax refunds 11,064,392.86 425114662
. - <= cash received related to operating activities 2,712,621.46 4,377,776.07 VL 46
+ Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 926,441,686.99 1,075,940,242.18
Cash paid to purchase commodities and receive labor services 745,123,170.28 §33,954,822.66
2 Net increase in loans and advances to customers
£ Net increase in balances with the Central Bank and other banks
t s Tash paid for compensation under original insurance contract
} % et increase in fending finds
2. Cash paid for interests, handling charges and comimissions
= Tash paid for policy dividend
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 179,274,457.76 122,033,894.38
Payments of taxes and surcharges 20,251,468.49 9,225,737.71
Other cash paid related to operating activities 105,349,052 .35 57,172,755.50
Subtotal of cash cutflows 1.045,998,148.88 1,022,387,210.25
Net cash flows from operating activities -119,556,461.89 53,553,031.93
I1. Cash flows from investing activities: T
Cash received from disposal of investments
T ash received from returns on investments 13,475,766.53 18,414,794.09
1 Nt cash received from disposal of fixed assets, intangible agsets and other fong- 68,000.00 3,000.00
o 2ssels
P o= zash received from disposal of subsidiaries and other business units
- txher received cash related to investing activities
Subtotal of cash jnflows from investing activities 13,543,766.53 18.417.794.09
{ash paid 10 acquire fixed assets, infangible assets and other Jong-term assels 152,862,593.79 220,865,678.85
Cash paid to acquire investments
A Net increase of pledge loans
=t cash paid for acquisitions of subsidiaries and other business units
{nher cash paid related to investing activities
Sub-total of cash eutfiows from investing activities 152,862,595.79 220,865,678.85
{ Net cash flows from investing activities -139,318,829.26 -202,447,884.76
I Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash received from investments
Cash received from loans 252,188,899.09 178,304,956.99
Other seceived cash related to financing activities 227,887,655.90 69,000,000.00
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activitics 480,076,554.99 247,304,956.99
Cash paid for debt repayment 111,425467.75 99.803,608.90
Cash for distributing dividends and profits or paying interest 10,064,857.31 6,297,658.45
Including: dividends and profits paid to minority shareholders by subsidiary
Other paid cashes related to financing activities 114,000,000.00 3,484,287.08
Subtotal of cash cutflows from financing activities 235,490,325.06 109,585,554.43
Net cashk flows from financing activities 244,586,229 93 137,719,402.56
TV. Effect of fluctuations iu exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents 6,755,102.80 5,075,458.53
V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents -7,533,958.42 -6,099,991.74 VI 46
Plus: Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 45,866,652.36 51,966,644.10 VL 46
V1. Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 38,332,693.94 45,866,652.36 VI. 46
Legal Representative: Zhang Yongming Dhrector of Accuunta?cy: Meng Jingyan Director of Accounting Department: Zeng Fenghuan
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Balance Sheet

Prepared by. HONG KONG AOTECAR INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED December 31, 2019 Monetary unit. CNY
Ttem Ending balance Beginning balance Note No.

Curreat assetst
Cash and cash equivalents 1,234 708.57 263,333.30
A\ Sertlement reserve
A\ Loans to banks and other financial institutions

Trading financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profits and losses

Derivative financial assets

Notes receivahle

Accounts recefvable

Accounts receivable financing

Prepayments

A Premium receivable

4 Reinsurance accounis recervable

& Reinsurance reserve receivable
Other receivables 80,020,497.00 152,876,274 80

Including interest receivable

dividends receivable

/% Buying back the sale of financial assets

Inventories

Contract assets

Assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets due within one year
Other current assets 4%1,507.79
Total current assets 81,255,205.57 153,631,115.89

Noun-current assets:

A Loans released and money advanced
Investments in debt securilies
Available-for-sale financial assets
Other Investments in debt securities

Held-to-maturity invesiment

Long-term receivables
Long-term equity investment 857,089,755 .50 857,089,755.50 XV 1

Investment in other equity instruments

Other non-curment financial assets
Investment property
Fixed assets

Construction in process

Bearer biological assets

Qil and gas assets

Usufruct assets

Iniangible assets

Development expenditures
Goodwill
Long-term defemed expenses

Deferred income tax assets

Other non-curment assets

Total nen-currcat assets 857,089,755.50 857,089,755.50
Total assets 938,344,961.07 1,010,720.871 .39
Legal Representative: Zhang Yongming Director of Accountancy: Meng Jingyan Director of Accounting Bepanmicnt: Zeng Fenghuan
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Balance Sheet (continue)

Prepared by: HONG KONG AOTECAR INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

December 31, 2019

Monetary unit: CNY

Ttemn

Ending balance

Beginning balance Note No.

Current liabilities:

Short-tenn loan

76,040,580.00

148,983,321.80

A Loans from the Central Bank

£ Loans from other banks

Trading financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profits and losses

Derivative financial liabiiities

Notes payable

Accounts payable

Receipts in advance

Contract asscts

A\ Financial assets sold for repurchase

A\ Deposit taking and interbank deposit

A\ Funds for agency securities trading

A Funds for undenwriting securities trading

Employee benefits payable

Tax and surcharges payable

Other payables

5.434 424.36

4,352,793.73

Including' interest payable

dividends payable

A Service chiarge and commission payable

A Reinsurance accounts payable

Liabilities classified as held for sale

Non-current liabilities due within one year

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

81,475,004.56

1533,336.115.53

Non-curreat liabilities:

& Reserve for insurance contracts

Long-term loans

Bonds payable

Including: preferred stock

perpetual bond

Lease liabilies

Long-term payabiles

Long-tenn employee benefits pavable

Estimated liabilities

Deferred revenues

Deferred income tax hiabilities

Other non-current liabilities:

Total non-current liabilities

Total Kabilitics

£1,475,004.56

153,336,115.53

Owner's equity

Paid in capital

859,161 408 36

859,161,408.36

Other equity ingtruments

Including: preferred stocks

perpetual bond

Capital Reserve

Less: treasury stock

Other comprehensive incomes -1,217,494 88 -1,214,712.05
Special reserve
Surplus reserve
& General risk reserve
Undistributed profit -1,073,956.97 -561,940.45

Total owner's equity

856,869,956.51

857,384,755 86

Total liabilities and owner's equity

938,344,961.07

1,010,720,871.39

Legal Representative: Zhang Yongining

Director of Accountancy: Meng Jingyan

Director of Accounting Department: Zeng Fenghuan




Income Statement

Prepared by: BONG KONG AOTECAR INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

Year 2019

Monetary unit. CNY

Item

Current penod

Paoor period

Note No.

1. Total operating revenue

Including operating revenpe

A Interest revenue

A\ Eamned premium

2 Handling charges and commission revenuc

1. Tolal operating cost

512,016.52

-220,804 87

Including operating cost

A Interest expenditures

£\ Handling charges and commission expenses

A\ Sureender value

A Net amount of compensation expenses

£ Net amount of reserves for insurance contract

A\ Pohey dividend expenditures

/5 Reinsurance expenses

Tax and surcharges

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

163,864.29

173,274 15

Research and development expense

Financial expenses

348,152.23

-394,079.02

Incliding. interest expense

3.816,429.24

3,158,020:85

inlererst income

3,761,577.24

3,554,882.59

Plusg: Other income

Investment income (Joss to be listed with *-"}

Including. Incoms From investment iato assacisted enterprises and joint
|ventures

Incere from d ion of financial assets f at
amortized cost (loss to be listed with "-")

A\ Exchange income (loss to be lsted with *-")

Net exposure hedge incame (loss 1o be isted with “-™")

Income from changes in fair value (loss 1o be listed with *-")

Credit impairment loes (fo28 10 be listed with ")

Assel impairment loss (loss to be isted with “-")

Gains from asset disposal (loss to be listed with “-")

TIE Operating profits (losses to be Hyted with “-7)

-512,016.52

226,804 87

Plus: non-aperating income

Less. non-opeating expenditures

V. Total profits (total lass to be listed with “—")

-512,016.52

220,804 .87

Less: income tax expenses

V. Net profits {net loss to be fisted with “—"}

512,016 52

220,804 87

(D) Continuous operating net profit

-512.016.32

120,804 87

(1) Discontirmed aperating n¢1 profil

VL Other comprehensive income after tax

{E} Remeasurement of chanyes in defined benefit plans

L. Changes anising from re-measurement of net liabilities or net assets of]
defined broefit plan

2. Other comprehensive income that cannot be wcansferred to profit or loss
vnpder equity method

3. Changes in fair value of other equity instrument investments

4. Changes in fair value of enterprise’s own credit risk

(11} Other comprehensive income 10 be reclassified to gains or losses in fowre

-2, 78283

7,673.08

I Other camprehensive income that can be transferved 1o profit and
Toss under equity method

2 Changes in fair value of ather debt nvestment

3 Profit and loss from changes in fair vatuc of available for sale|
financigl assets

4 Amount of financial assets reclassified imo other h

P!

e
5 Profit and loss of helf to maturity invesiment rectsssified as available)
for sale Bnsncial assels

&, Provision far credit impaivment of other debt invesiment

7.Cash flow hedging reserve (efiective pant of cash flow hedging profil;

and loss)

8. Transhtion difference of foreign currency financial statements

~2,782 83

1,671.08

9 Others

VIL Total comprehensive income

-512,016.52

220,804 87

VIH. Eamnings per share

{1) Basic earnings per share

(2) Diluted earnings per share

Legal Repi ive: Zhang Y

12

Directer of Accountancy: Meng Jingyan Ditector of A

: Zeng F
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Cash Flow Statement

Prepared by: HONG KONG AOTECAR INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

Year 2019

Monetary unit: CNY

Item

Current period

Prior period

Note No.

I. Cash (low generated from operating activitics:

Cash received from sales of goods or rendering of services

A\ Net increase in customer’s deposits and interbank placements

A\ Net increase in loaus from the Central Bank

/\ Net increase in loans from other financial institutions

A Cash received from receiving premium of original i € contract

/\ Net cash received from reinsurance business

A\ Net increase from policyholders” deposits and deposits of investment

A\ Cash received from interests, handling charges and commissions

/\ Net increase in loans from other banks

2 Net increase in repurchase operating capital

A Net eash received from acting sales of securities

Receipts of tax refunds

Other cash received related to operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities

Cash paid to purchase commodities and receive labor services

/A Net increase in loans and advances to customers

I\ Net increase in balances with the Central Bank and other banks

A\ Cash paid for compensation under original insurance contract

A Net increase in lending funds

/A Cash paid for interests, handling charges and commissions

A\ Cash paid for policy dividend

Cash paid to and en behalf of employees

Payments of taxes and surcharges

Other cash paid related to operating activities

166,097.35

667,564.66

Subtotal of cash outflows

166,097.35

667,564.66

Net cash flows from operating activities

-166,097.35

-667,564.66

IL. Cash flows from investing activities:

Cagsh received from disposal of investments

Cash recejved from returns on investments

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets and other long-
term assets

Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries and ather business units

Other received cash refated to investing activities

76,617,355.04

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities

76,617,355.04

Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets

Cash paid 1o acquire investments

/A Net increase of pledge Joans

Net cash paid for acquisitions of subsidiaries and other business units

Other cash paid related to investing activities

104,769,288 .87

Sub-fotal of cash outflows from investing acfivities

104,769,288 87

Net ¢cash flows from investing activities

76,617.355.04

-104,769,288.87

IIL. Cash flows [rom financing activities:

Cash received from investments

{=

Cash received from loans

148,983,325.80

Other received cash refated 1o (inancing activities

1,081,630.83

3,354,882.59

Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities

1,081,630.83

152,538,208.39

Cash paid for debt repayment

72,942,741.80

45,216,664.00

Cash for distributing dividends and profits or paying interest

3,324,921 .45

2,001,314.72

Inchuding: dividends and profits paid to minority shareholders by subsidiary

Other paid cashes related to financing activities

Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities

76,267,663.25

47,217,978.72

Net cash flows from financing activities

-75,186,G32 .42

105,320,229.67

TV. Effect of fluctuations in exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents

-293,850.00

7,673.08

V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

971,375.27

-108,950.78

Pius: Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

263,333.30

372,284.08

V1. Balance of cash snd cash equivalents at the end of the period

1,234,708.57

263,333.30

Legal Representative: Zhang Yongming

Director of Accounlfx:?cy: Meng Jingyan

Director of Accounting Department

: Zeng Fenghuan
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HONG KONG AOTECAR INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements of 2019

(Amounts are denominated in CNY unless otherwise stated)

I. Background of the Company

(I) Company overview

HONG KONG AOTECAR INVESTMENT CQ., LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the "Company")
is established by Shanghai Sheng You Investment Co., Ltd. in accordance with the Certificate of
Overseas Investment (N0.3109201500388) issued by the Ministry of Commerce and registered
in Hong Kong in June 2015 with total investment of USD0.135 billion. The number of the
Company’s Business Registration Certificate in Hong Kong is 2246231. The Company’s main

business is new energy technology research and development and equity investment.

The parent company is Shanghai Shengyou Investment Co., Ltd. The uitimate holding company
of the Company is Aotecar New Technology Co. Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the "Aotecar")

which is a domestic company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
The financial statements are approved to be issued by management on April 25, 2020.

(II) Scope of the consolidated financial statements

As at December 31, 2019, subsidiaries within the scope of the consolidated financial statements
of the Company are as follows:

No. Name of subsidiaries

1  Air International Thermal (Luxembourg) S.A.R.L. (here in after referred to as "Al Luxembourg"}
2 Air Systems, S. de R.L. de C.V.

3 Air International Thermal Systems (DE) GmbH (hereinafter referred to as "AIGMBH")

4  Air International Thermal (Belgium] (hereinafter referred to as "Al Belgium")

5 Air International Thermal [China} Pty LIMITED (Note 2)

& Huxley Holdings Limited (here in after referred to as "HHL"}

7  Air International {Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (here In after referred to as "AISH") (Note 2)

8  Air International {Nantong) Co,, Ltd. (here in after referred to as "AINT") (Note 2)

9 Air International (Hainan) Co., Ltd. (Note 2}

10 Chuzhou Air International Thermal Systems Co., Ltd. (Note 2)
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No. Name of subsidiaries

11 Chengdu Air International Thermal Systems Co,, Ltd. (Note 2}

12 AIGL International Pty Ltd. (Nate 2)

13 Air International Thermal {Australia) Pty LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as "Al Australia”) (Note 2)
14 Air International Thermal Systems R&D (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (Note Z)

15 AITS Australia Pty LIMITED (Note 2)

16 Air International Thermal Systems (Thailand) LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the "Al Thailand")
17 AITS US Inc. (here in after referred to as "Al USA") (Note 2)

18 Air International Thermal {US) Subsidiary Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "AIT(US)") (Note 2)

19 Air Internatiana! (US) Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "AIUS") (Note 2)

20 Air International Thermal (United Kingdom) Limited (hereinafter referred to as "Al UK")

21 Air Internatienal Thermal (Slovakia) s.r.o. (here in after referred te as "Al Slovakia ™)

Note 1: All the above subsidiaries are hereinafter referred to as the "Air International Group".

Note 2: Al USA, AIUS and Air International Thermal (US) Subsidiary Inc. are hereinafier referred
to as the "Al US Business Group".

Al Australia, AITS Australia Pty Limited, Air International Thermal (China) Pty Limited and AIGL

International Pty Ltd are hereinafter referred to as the "Al Australia Business Group”™.

Air International (Shanghai) Co., Ltd, Air International Thermal Systems R&D {Shanghai) Co,
Ltd, Air International (Nantong} Co., Ltd., Air Internaticnal (Hainan) Co., Ltd., Chuzhou Air
International Thermal Systems Co., Ltd. And Chengdu Air International Thermal Systems Co.,

Ltd. are hereinafter referred to as the "Al China Business Group”.

Except for the overseas operational entity of Al China Business Group, the Air International

Group is collectively referred to as the "Al Overseas Business Group".

The scope and changes of the consolidated financial statements for the current period are
detailed in Note VIL The scope changes of consolidation and Note VIIL “Equity in other entities”

for subsidiaries of the Company.

II. Basis for Preparation of Financial Statements

(1) Basis for preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on geing concern basis and actual
transaction in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (“ASBE") and
supplementary regulations and the significant accounting policies and accounting estimates as

follows.
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(11) Going concern
The Company is capable of remain going concern within 12 months from the end of report
period, without any significant matters influencing its capability of remaining going concern.

I1I. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates

(1} Statement on Compliance with ASBE

The Company has adopted the most recent Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
(“ASBE") issued by the Ministry of Finance ("MOF]}, related Application Guidelines, Explanation
and other related regulations. The financial statements present truly and completely the

Company’s financial position, the results of operations and cash flows.
(11} Accounting period and operating cycle

The Company has adopted the calendar year as its accounting year. i.e. from 1 January to 31

December.

The company takes 12 months as an aperating cycle and uses it as a criterion to classify liquid

assets and liabilities.
(111} Functional Currency

The currency adopted by the Company is CNY when preparing the consolidated financial

statements. Amounts are expressed in CNY unless otherwise stated.

US dollar is adopted as the functional currency by the subsidiaries including Al US4, AIUS, AIT
{US), HHL, Mauritius and Aotecar (Morocco).

Euro is adopted as the functional currency by the subsidiaries including Al Luxembourg, Al

Belgium, Al Slovakia and AIGMBH;

Mexican peso is adopted as the functional currency by the subsidiaries including Air Systerns,
S.deR.L.de CV.

Thai baht is adopted as the functional currency by the subsidiary Al Thailand;

Australian dollar is adopted as the functional currency by the subsidiaries including AT Australia,
AITS Australia Pty LIMITED and Air International Thermal (China) Pty LIMITED And AIGL
International Pty Ltd.

GBP is adopted as the functional currency by the subsidiary Air International Thermal (United
Kingdom) LIMITED

{IV) Items with changes of measurement during the period and the measurement adopted for
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the period

The Company adopts measurements including histeric cost, Replacementcost, net realizable

value, present value and fair value.
(V] Business combinations

1. The accounting treatment of business combinations involving enterprises under common

control

For a business combination that involves onhe single exchange transaction or achieved in stages
that involves multiple exchange transactions, assets and liabilities that are obtained in a
business combination shall be measured at their carrying amounts at the combination date as
recorded by the party being absorbed in the consolidated financial statement of ultimate
controlling party. The difference between the carrying amount of the net assets obtained and
the carrying amount of the consideration paid for the combination (or the aggregate face value
of shares issued as consideration) shall be adjusted to capital reserve. If the capital reserve is
not sufficient to absorb the difference, any excess shall be adjusted against retained earnings.2.
The accounting treatment of business combinations not involving enterprises under common

control

Where the cost of combination exceeds the investor’s interest in the fair value of the investee’s
identifiable net assets, the difference is treated as an asset and recognized as goodwill, which is
measured at cost on initial recognition. Where the cost of combination is less than the investor’s
interest in the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets, the investor firstly reassesses
the measurement of the fair values of the investee’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liahilities and measurement of the cost of combination. If after that reassessment, the cost of
combination is still less than the investor's interest in the fair value of the investee’s identifiable
net assets, the investor recognizes the remaining difference immediately in profit or loss for the

current period.

Accounting treatment for business combinations not involving enterprises under common

control and achieved in stages shall be as following arders:

{1) The carrying value of long-term equity investment shall be adjusted. The summation of the
carrying value (prior to the date of purchase) of equity investment held by investor in
investee and increased investment cost (at the purchase date) shall be recognized as the
initial investment cost; when disposal investee's equity held by investor (prior to purchase
date)} involving other comprehensive income, related other comprehensive income shall be

adjusted into current investment income.

{(2) Recognition of goodwill {or amount to be recorded in current profit and loss). The cost of
adjusted initial cost of investment at the acquisition date is compared against the acquired
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fair value of the shares in investee's identifiable net assets during the transaction. Goodwill
is recognized if the former is higher than the fatter, or the amount is recorded in current
profit and loss if the former is lower than the latter.

A parent loses control of a subsidiary in multiple transacticns in which it disposes of its

subsidiary in stages.
(1) In determining whether to account for the multiple transactions as a single transaction

A parent shall consider all the terms and conditions of the transactions and their economic
effects. One or more of the following may indicate that the parent should account for the

multiple arrangements as a sing{e transaction: -
i. Arrangements are entered into at the same time or in contemplation of each other;
ii. Arrangements work together to achieve an overall commercial effect;

iti. The occurrence of one arrangement is dependent on the occurrence of at least one other

arrangements;

iv. One arrangement considered on its own is not economicaily justified, but it is economically -

justified when considered together with other arrangements.

() Accounting treatment for each of the multiple transactions forming part of a bundied
transactions which eventually results in loss of control the subsidiary during disposal of its

subsidiary in stages

If each of the multiple transactions forms part of a bundled transactions which eventually
results in loss of contro} the subsidiary, these multiple transactions should be accounted for as a
single transaction. In the consolidated financial statements, the difference between the
consideration received and the corresponding propo&ion of the subsidiary’s net assets in each
transaction prior to the loss of control shall be recognized in other comprehensive income and

transferred to the profit or loss when the parent eventually loses control of the subsidiary.

The remaining equity investment shall be re-measured at its fair value in the consolidated
financial statements at the date when control is lost. The difference between the total amount of
consideration received from the transaction that resulted in the loss of control and the fair value
of the remaining equity investment and the share of net assets of the former subsidiary
calculated continuvously from the acquisition date or combination date based on the previous
shareholding proportion, shall be recognized as investment income for the current period when
control is lost, The amount previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to
the former subsidiary’s equity investment should be transferred to investment income for the

current period when control s lost.

(3) Accounting treatment for each of the multiple transactions NOT forming part of a bundled
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transactions which eventually results in loss of control the subsidiary during disposal of its

subsidiary in stages

If the Company doesn't lase control of investee, the difference between the amount of the
consideration received and the corresponding portion of net assets of the subsidiary shall be
adjusted to the capital reserve (capital premium or share premium) in the consolidated

financial statements.

If the Company loses control of investee, the remaining equity investment shall be re-measured
at its fair value in the consolidated financial statements at the date when control is lost. The
difference between the total amount of consideration received from the transaction that
resulted in the loss of control and the fair value of the remaining equity investment and the
share of net assets of the former subsidiary calculated continuously from the acquisitien date or
combination date based on the previous shareholding proportion, shall be recognized as
investment income for the current perivd when control is lost. The amount previously
recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to the former subsidiary’s equity
investment should be transferred to investment income for the current period when control is

last.
(V) Preparation method of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by the company in accordance with rhe
Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No. 33 - consolidated financial statements on the
basis of the financial statements of the parent company and its subsidiaries and other relevant

information.
(V1) Classification and accounting treatment of joint venture arrangements
1. Recegnition and classification of joint arrangements

A joint arrangement means an arrangement which is jointly contrelted by two or more
participants in the joint venture. A joint arrangement has the following characteristics: the
parties are bound by the arrangement; two or more parties participate in the joint control of the
arrangement. Neither of the parties shall be able to control the arrangement individually, and
any participant who has joint control over the arrangement shall be able to prevent sole control

of the arrangement by the other party or parties.

Joint control means agreed shared control on certain arrangements, under which relevant
activities of the arrangement have to be unanimousiy agreed by ail parties involved in the

shared control.

The joint arrangement is divided into joint operations and joint ventures. A joint operation is a

joint arrangement that the parties enjoy the relevant assets and bear the liabilities of the
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arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement that the each party has only the right to

enjoy the rights of the net assets of the arrangement,
2. Accounting treatment of joint arrangements

The company shall determine the following items associated with the common interests in the

joint arrangement, and apply relevant accounting standards accordingly:

(1)} Assets solely owned and assets shared based on its holding proportion;

(2) Liabilities solely undertaken and liabilities shared based on its holding proportion;

(3) Income generated from sales of productions from the joint operations it owned;

{4) Income generated from revenue of the joint operations based on its holding proportion;

(5) Expenditures solely incurred, and recognition of expenditures incurred in the joint venture

based on its holding proportion

Participated companies of the joint arrangement shall deal with investment in the joint
arrangement in accordance with relevant provisions in Accounting Standards for Business

Enterprises #2 Long-term Equity Investments
(VIII] Cash & cash equivalents in cash flow statement

The term "cash” refers to cash on hand of enterprise and deposit available for payment at any
time; the term "cash equivalents" refers to short-term (generally three months since the
purchase date) and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of

cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
(IX} Translation of foreign currency transaction and foreign currency statement
1. Translation for foreign currency transactions

When initialiy recognized, foreign currency transactions are converted into CNY amounts at the
spot exchange rate on the date of transaction. On balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary
items are translated at the spot exchange rate on the balance sheet date and the exchange
difference shall be recognized into profit or loss of the period, except for exchange differences
related to a specific-purpose borrowing denominated in foreign currency for constructing an
asset in relation to inventory and fixed assets that qualifies for capitalization. Foreign currency
non-monetary items measured at historical cost are still translated at the spot exchange rate on
the transaction date without adjusting their CNY amounts. Foreign currency non-monetary
items measured at fair value shall be translated at spot exchange rate on the date the fair value
was determined and the translation difference shall be charged to current profits and losses or

other comprehensive income,

22




2. Translation of financial statements presented in foreign currencies

The asset and liahility items in the balance sheet shall be converted at the spot exchange rate on
the balance sheet date; the owner’s equity items, except for the items of “undistributed profit”,
shall be converted at the spot exchange rate on the transaction date; the income and
expenditure items in the income statement shall be converted at the spot exchange rate on the
transaction date. The translation difference of foreign financial statements is recognized as

other comprehensive incomes.
{X) Financial Instruments
1. Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The company recognizes a financial asset or financial liability when it becomes a party 1c a financial

instrument contract.

Trading in financial asseis by conventional means shall be recognized and derecognized according to
the accounting of the trading day. Conventional means of buying and selling financial assets refer to
the collection or delivery of financial assets within the time limit stipulated by laws and regulations or
common practices in accordance with the provisions of the contract. Trading day refers to the date

when the company promises to buy or sell financial assets.

If the following conditions are met, financial assets (or part of financial assets or part of a group of

similar financial assets) shall be derecognized, i.e. written off from their accounts and balance sheets:
(1) The right to receive cash flow from financial assets expires;

(2) Transferred the right to receive cash flow from financial assets, or assumed the obligation to
timely pay the received cash flow i full to a third party under the "over-the-counter agreement”; And
(a) virtually all risks and rewards of ownership of financial assets have been transferred, or (b)
although virtwalily ail risks and rewards of ownership of financial assets have not been transferred or

retained, control of the financial assets has been abandoned.
2. Classification and measurement of financial assets

At the time of initial recognition, the financial assets of the Company are classified into financial
assels measured in amortized cost, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive incorne,
and financial assets at fair value through current profits and losses according to the business model of
the Company in managing financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of financial

assets. Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification.

The company's classification of financial assets is based on the company's business madel of

managing financial assets and the cash flow characteristics of financial assets.
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(1) Financial Assets Measured in amortized cost

Financial assets that meet the following conditions at the same time are classified as financial assets
measured by amortized cost: the company's business mode of managing the financial assets is to
collect the contract cash flow as the target; The contractual terms of the financial asset stipulate that
the cash flow generated on a specific date is only the payment of principal and interest based on the
amount of outstanding principal. For such financial assets, the effective interest rate method is
adopted for subsequent measurement according to amortized cost. The profits or losses arising from

amortization or impairment are included in the current profits and losses.
(2) Invesument in debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets that meet the following conditions at the same time arc classified as financial assets
that are at fair value through other comprehensive income: the company's business mode of managing
the financial assets is aimed at both collecting contracmal cash flow and selling the financial assets;
The contractual terms of the financial asset stipulate that the cash flow generated on a specific date is
only the payment of principal and interest based on the amount of outstanding principal. For such
financial assets, fair value is adopted for subsequent measurement. The discount or premium is
amortized using the effective interest rate method and recognized as interest income or expense.
Except for impairment losses and exchange differences of foreign currency monetary financial assets
recognized as current profits and losses, changes in fair value of such financial assets are recognized
as other comprebensive income until the financial assets are derecognized, and their accumulated
gains or losses are transferred into current profits and losses. Interest income related to such financial

assets is included in current profits and losses.
(3) Investment in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Company irrevocably chooses to designate some non-trading equity instrument investments as
financial assets that are at fair value through other comprehensive income. Only relevant dividend
income 1s included in current profits and losses. Changes in fair value are recognized as other
comprehensive income unti] the financial assets are derecognized, and their accumulated gains or

losses are transferred to retained earnings.
(4) Financial assets at fair value through current profits and losses

The above-mentioned financiai assets measured in amortized cost and financial assets other than
those at fair value through other comprehensive income are classified as financial assets ar fair value
through current profits and losses. At the tme of initial recognition, in order to eliminate or
significantly reduce accounting mismatch, financial assets can be designated as financial assets at fair
value through the profits and losses of the current period. For such financial assets, fair value is
adopted for subsequent measurement, and all changes in fair value are included in current profits and

losses.
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All affected related financial assets will be reclassified only when and only when the company

changes its business mode of managing financial assets,

For financial assets at fair value through the profits and losses of the current period, relevant
transaction costs are directly included in the profits and losses of the current period, and transaction

costs related to other types of financial assets are included in their initial recognition amount.
3, Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The Company's financial liabilities are classified into: financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
and financial liabilities measured at fair value with changes recorded in current profits and losses

upon initial recognition.

Financial liabilities that reet one of the following conditions may be designated as financial
liabilities measured at fair value at the time of initial measurement and whose changes are included in
current profits and losses: {1) the designation can ¢liminate or significantly reduce accounting
mismaich; (2) According to the group's risk management or investment strategy stated in official
written documents, manage and evaluate the financial liability portfolio or the combination of
finaucial assets and financial liabilities on the basis of fair value, and report to key management
personne} within the group on this basis; {3) The financial liability includes embedded derivatives

that need to be split separately.

The Company determines the classification of financial liabilities upon initial recognition. For
financial liabilities at fair value through current profits and losses, relevant transaction costs are
directly inciuded in current profits and losses, and relevant transaction costs for other financial

liabilities are included in their imtial recognition amount.
Subsequent measurement of financial [iabilities depends on their classification:
(1) Financial Liabilities Measured in amortized cost

For such financial liabilities, the real interest rate method is adopted and the subsequent measurement

is carried out according to amortized cost.
(2) Financial labilities at fair value through current profits and losses

Financial liabilities at fair value through current profits and losses include transactional financial
liabilities {including derivatives belonging to financial liabilities) and financial Liabilities designated

at fair valvue at initial recognition and whose changes are included in current profits and losses.
4. Offset of financial instruments

If the following conditions are met at the same time, the financial assets and financial liabilities shall
be listed in the balance sheet in the net amount after offsetting each other: they have the legal right io

offset the recognized amount, and such legal right is currently enforceable; The plan is to settle on a

25



net basis, or to realize the financial assets and settle the financial liabilities at the same time.
5. Impairment of financial assets

For financial assets measured by amortized cost, debt instument investments and financial guarantee
contracts measured by fair value and whose changes are included in other comprehensive income, the
Company recognizes loss reserves on the basts of expected credit losses. Credit loss refers to the
difference between all contractmal cash flows receivable according to the contract and all cash flows
expected to be collected, discounted according to the original actual interest rate, i.e. the present value

of all cash shortages.

The Company estimates the expected credit losses of financial assets measured in amortized cost and
financial assets (debt instruments) at fair value through other comprchensive income in a single or
combined manner, taking into account all reasonable and based information, including

forward-looking information.
(1) General model of expected credit loss

If the credit risk of the financial instrument has increased significantly since the initial recognition,
the Company will measure its loss reserve by an amount equivalent to the expected credit loss of the
financial instrument throughout its life. If the credit risk of the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since the initial recognition, the Company will measure its loss reserve according to the
amount equivalent to the expected credit loss of the financial instrument within the next 12 months,
The increase or reversal amount of loss reserves thus formed shall be included in the current profits

and losses as impairtnent losses or gains.

Usually, if the overdue period exceeds 30 days, the company will consider that the credit risk of the
financial instrument has increased significantly, unless there is conclusive evidence to prove that the

credit risk of the financial instrument has not increased significanty since the initial recognition.

Specifically, the Company divides the process of credit impairment of financial instruments that did
not incur credit impairment at the time of purchase or origin into three stages. There are different

accounting methods for the impairment of financial instruments in different stages:
The first stage: the credit tisk has not increased significantly since the initial recognition

For financial instruments at this stage, the enterprise shall measure the loss reserve according to the
expected credit Joss in the next 12 months, and calculate the interest income according to its book
balance (i.e. without deduction of impairment reserve) and the actual interest rate (if the instrument is

a financial asset, the same below).

The second stage: the credit risk has increased significantly since the initial recognition, but no credit

impairment has occurred.

For financial instruments at this stage, the enterprise shall measure the loss reserve according to the
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expected credit loss during the whole life of the instrument, and calculate the interest income

according to its book balance and actual interest rate.
The third stage: credit impairment occurs after initial recognition

For financial instruments at this stage, the enterprise shall measure the loss reserve according to the
expected eredit loss during the whole life of the instrument, but the calculation of interest income i3
different from that of financial assets at the first two stages. For financial assets that have suffered
credit impairment, the enterprise shall calculate interest income according to its amortized cost {book

balance minus the provision for impairment, i.e. book value) and actual interest rate.

For financial assets that have suffered credit impairment at the time of purchase or origin, the
enterprise shall only recognize the change of expected credit loss during the whole life after initial
recognition as loss reserve, and calculate inlerest income according to its amortized cost and the

actual interest rate adjusted by credit.

{2) For financial instruments with lower credit risk on the balance sheet date, the Company chooses
not to compare the credit 1isk with the initial recognition, and directly assumes that the credit risk of

the instrument has not increased significantly since the initial recognition.

If an enterprise determines that the default risk of a financial instrument is low, the borrower has a
strong ability ta fulfill its contractual cash flow abligations in a short period of time, and even if there
are adverse changes in the economic sifuation and operating eavironment for a long peried of time, it
will not necessarily reduce the borrower's ability to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations, then

the financial instrument can be regarded as having a lower credit risk.
(3) Receivables and lease receivables

The Company adopts a simplified model of expected credit loss for receivables specified in
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.14-Income that do not contain significant
financing components (including the financing components in contracts not exceeding one year
according to the standards), and always measures its loss reserves according to the amount of

expected credit loss during the entire duration.

The Company has made an accounting policy choice for receivables containing significant financing
components and lease receivables regulated by the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No.21-Leasing. The Company has chosen to adopt a simplified model of expected credit loss, that is,
Lo measure the loss reserve according to the amount equivalent to the expected credit Joss during the

entire duration.
6. Transfer of financial assets

H the company has transferred almost all risks and rewards in the ownership of the financial asset to

the transferee, the recognition of the financial asset shall be terminated; If almost all risks and
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rewards on the ownership of a financial asset are retained, the recognition of the financial asset shall

not be terminated,

If the company has neither transferred nor retained almost all risks and rewards in the ownership of
financial assets, the following situations shall be handled respectively: if the company has given up
contrel over the financial assets, the recognition of the financial assets shall be terminated and the
resulting assets and liabilities shall be recognized; If it does not give up its control over the financial
assets, the relevant financial assets shall be recognized according to the extent that it continues to be
involved in the transferred financial assets, and the relevant liabilities shall be recognized

accordingly.

In case of continued involvement by providing financial guarantee for the transferred financial assets,
the assets formed by continued involvement shall be confirmed according to the lower of the book
value of the financial assets and the amount of financial guarantee. Financial guarantee amount refers

to the highest amount of consideration received that will be required to be repaid.

{XI} Notes receivable

The company adopts a simplified model of expected credit loss to receivables which do not
contain significant financing components (including the fact that the financing components in
contracts that within one year) according to ‘Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.
14-Revenues’. The model means measuring loss provision according to the credit loss in the
duration all the time, and the increase or reversal of the resulting loss reserve is included in the

current profit and loss as an impairment loss or gain.

For receivables that contain a significant financing component, the company chooses to use a
simplified model of expected credit loss, that is, to always measure its loss provision according

to the amount of expected credit losses throughout the duration.

Simplified model of expected credit losses: measure its loss provision according to the amount

of expected credit losses throughout the duration.

The company considers all reasonable and evidence-based information, including
forward-looking information, to estimate the expected credit losses of notes receivable in a

single or combined manner.

Basis for determining the

Combination type Accrual method
combination
Portfolio of notes receivable 1 Banker's acceptance hill Expected credit loss rate is 0.00%
Commercial acceptance bill Please refer to Note 3 (12}

Portfolio of notes receivable 2
Accounts Receivable’
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Note: For banker’s acceptance bills classified as portfolio receivable combination 1, it has lower

credit risk and the company expects no credit losses;

For commercial acceptance bills classified as portfolio of notes receivable 2, this bill is regarded

as accounts receivable and the expected credit losses are determined accordingly.
(X1I) Receivables

The Company adopts a simplified model of expected credit loss for receivables specified in the
Accounting Standards for Business Epterprises No.14-Income that do not contain significant
financing components {including the financing components in contracts that do not take into
account for more than one year according to the standards}, that is, the loss provision is always
measured according to the amount of expected credit loss during the whole duration, and the
increase or reversal amount of loss provision thus formed is included in the current profits and

losses as impairment loss or profit.

For receivables with significant financing components, the Company adopts a simplified model
of expected credit loss, i.e. its loss provision is always measured according to the amount of

expected credit loss during the whole life.

Simplified mode] of expected credit loss: always measure the loss reserve according to the

amount of expected credit loss during the whole life.

The Company estimates the expected credit loss of accounts receivable in a single or combined
way, taking into account all reasonable and reliable information, including forward-looking

information.
(XI11) Accounts receivable financing

Financial assets that meet the following conditions at the same time are classified as financial
assets measured at fair value and their changes are included in other comprehensive income.
The business target of the company to manage this financial asset is to collect the contractual
cash flow as well as to scll it as financial assets. The contractual terms of the financial asset
stipulate that the cash flow generated at a particular date is only for the payment of principal

and interest based on the outstanding principal amount.

The company transfers the notes receivable held by discount or endorsement, and such
activities is frequent and involves a large amount of money. The essence of its management
business model is to both collect contractual cash flow and sell it, in accordance with financial
instrument standards, the relevant provisions of the corpany are classified into financial assets

at fair value through other comprehensive income.
(XIV) Other receivables

The Company adopts the general model of expected credit loss for other receivables. Please
29
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refer to "Note [11, (X] Financial Instruments" for details.
(XV) Inventory
1. Classification of inventories

Inventories include materials in transit, raw materials, turnover materials, inventory goods,
goods in process, goods shipped in transit, commission processing materials, development

costs, development of products, etc.
2. Valuation method for inventory
Inventories are valued at month-end weighted average method, standard costing method.

3, Determination basis of net realizable value of inventory and method of provision of decline in

value of inventories

On the balance sheet date, the inventories shall be measured by cost or net realizable value,
whichever is lower, and the provision for decline in value of inventories shall be made in
accordance with the balance of single item cost higher than net realizable value. The net
realizable value of the inventories directly used for sale is determined through deducting
estimated sales expense and relevant taxes and dues from estimated sale price during normal
production and operation; the net realizable value of the inventories to be further processed is
determined through deducting the estimated cost for the further processing, the estimated
sales expense and relevant taxes and dues from the estimated sale price of the finished
praducts during normal productien and operation; on the balance sheet date, as to the same
inventories, some of which have a contract price and some have no contract price, the net
realizable value shall be determined separately, and then be compared with the corresponding

cost, to determine the provision for decline in value of inventories or the reversed amount.
4. Inventory taking system

The perpetual inventory system is adopted.

5. Amortization method for low value consumables and packaging materials

(1) Low value consumables

Low value consumables are amortized by lump-sum method.

(2) Packages

Packages are amortized by lump-sum method.

(XVI) Long-term equity investment

1. Initial recognition of investment cost
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(1) For a business combination involving enterprises under common control, if the
consideration of the combination is satisfied by paying cash, transfer of non-cash assets,
assumption of liabilities or issue of equity securities, the initial investment cost of the long-term
equity investment shall be made by the share of book value of net assets in the consolidated
financial statements from the final controlling party at the date of combination. The difference
between the initial investment cost and the book value of cash paid, non-cash assets transferred,
liabilities assumed and the face value of equity securities issued shall be adjusted to capital
reserve. If the balance of capital reserve is not sufficient, any excess be adjusted to retained

earnings.

In terms of achieving the enterprise merger under the same control steps by steps, the initial
investment cost of the investment shall be the share of the book ownet’s equity of the
consolidated party on the consolidation date calculated by the proportion of shares held. The
difference between the initial investment cost and the book value of the original long-term
equity investment plus the sum of the book value of the new payment of the further shares on
the merger day, adjusting the capital reserve (Capital premium or equity premium). If the

balance of capital reserve is not sufficient, the excess shall be adjusted to retained earnings.

For a business combination involving enterprises under common control by step, the initial
investment cost of the long-term equity investment shall be the entitled share of the absorbing
party’s share of the book value of the owners’ equity of the party being absorbed calculated
based on the shareholding ratio at combination date. The difference between the initial
investment cost and sum of book value of original long-term equity investnent and fair value of
consideration paid for further shares at combination date shall be adjusted to capital reserve. If

the balance of capital reserve is not sufficient, any excess shall be adjusted to retained earnings.

(2) For a business combination not invelving enterprises under common control, the initial
investment cost of the long-term equity investment acquired shall be measured at the fair value

of consideration of combination at combination date.

{3) Except business combination: For a long-term equity acquired by paying cash, the initial
investment cost shall be the actual purchase price has been paid; for a long-term equity
acquired by the issue of equity or debt securities, the initial investment cost shall be the fair
value of the equity or debt securities issued; Foar a lang-term equity acquired by investors, the
initial investment cost is based on the value agreed in the investment contract or agreement

{except for the unfair value agreed in the contract or agreement).
2. Subsequent measurement

Where the Company is able to exercise control aver aun investor, the long-term equity
investment shall be accounted for using the cost method. A long-term equity investment in an
associate or a joint venture shall be accounted for using the equity method.
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Under the cost method, investment income is recognized in the period in accordance with the
attributable shares of cash dividends or profit distributions declared by the investee, except for
cash dividends or profits already declared but not yet paid that are included in the price or
consideration actually paid upon acquisition of the long-term equity investinent. Meanwhile,
the Company considers whether the long-term equity investment is impaired according to

impairment policy.

Under the equity method, where the initial investment cost of a long-term equity investment
exceeds the Company's share of the fair value of the investee's identifiable net assets at the time
of acquisition, no adjustment shall be made to the initial investment cost. Where the initial
investment cost is less than the Company’s interest in the fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets at the acquisition date, the difference shall be credited to profit or loss for

the period, and the cost of the long-term equity investment shall be adjusted accordingly.

Under the equity method, after acquired the long-term equity investment, the Company
recognizes its share of the net profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the investee for
the period as investment income or loss for the period and other comprehensive income and
adjust the book value of long-term equity of investments. The Company recognizes its share of
the investee's net profit or loss and other comprehensive income based on the fair value of the
investee's individual separately identifiable assets, etc. at the acquisition date after making
appropriate adjustments to confirm with the Company's accounting policies and accounting
period. Unrealized profits or losses resulting from the Company's fransactions with its
associated enterprises and joint ventures are recognized as investment income or loss to the
extent that those attributable to the Group's equity interest are eliminated. However,
unrealized losses resulting from the Company's transactions with its associated enterprises and
joint ventures which represent impairment losses on the transferred assets are not eliminated.
The investee's profit is recognized after adjustment. The Company's share is caleulated based
on announced distributable profits or cash dividends and correspondingly adjusted to the book
value of the long-term equity investment. The Company discontinues recognizing its share of
net losses of the investee after the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment together
with any long-term interests that in substance form part of its net investment in the investee is
reduced to zero, except for those investments that the Company has the obligation to undertake
extra losses. Changes in owners' equity of the investee other than net profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and profit distribution are correspondingly adjusted to the book value

of the long-term equity investment and recognized in capital reserve (other capital reserve).
3. Basis for determining joint control and significant influence over investee

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as to
obtain benefits from its operating activities. Significant influence is the power to participate in

the financial and aperating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
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over those policies.
4. Disposal of long-term equity investment

(1) Situations partly disposing the long-term equity investment to the subsidiaries without

losing control

To partly dispose the long-term equity investment to the subsidiaries without losing cantral, the
difference between the proceeds and book value of the disposal investment shall be recognized

as current investment income.

{2) Situations resulting in losing control on the subsidiaries due to partly disposal of equity

investment or other reasons

In case of situations resulting in losing control on the subsidiaries due to partly disposal of
equity investment or other reasons, the book value of the long-term equity investment
corresponding to the sold equity shall be de-recognized, and the difference between the sale
price and the book value of the disposed long-term equity investment shail be recognized as
investment profit (or loss}; while the remaining equity shall be recognized as long-term equity
investment or other relevant financial assets based on the book value. The remaining equity
which may impose joint control or material influence on the subsidiaries shall go through

proper changes in accounting precedures from cost method to equity method.
5. Impairment test method and provision for impairment loss

The Company reviews the investments to subsidiaries, associate enterprises and joint ventures
at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication that they have suffered
an impairment loss. If an impairment indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated, If
such recoverable amount is less than its book value, a provision for impairment losses in

respect of the deficit is recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
(XVII) Investment property

1) Investment property includes leased land use right, land use right that has been held and

are prepared to sale after appreciation, and leased buildings.

2) Investment property shall be initially measured at cost and subsequently measured using
the cost model. Depreciation or amortization shall be adopted in the same way as fixed assets
and intangible assets. At the balance sheet date, if there is any indication that the investment
property is impaired, the corresponding provision for impairment loss shall be made based on

the difference between the book value and the recoverable amount.
(XVITI) Fixed assets

1. Recognition conditions, valuation and depreciation methods for fixed assets

33



Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and have useful lives of more than

one accounting year.

Fixed assets shall be recognized at the actual cost upon acquisition and shall be subject to

depreciation by adopting straight-line method from the following month when the fixed assets

are ready for their intended use.

2. Depreciation methods for fixed assets

Depreciable Net residual Annual rate of
Items Depreciation method
Life (Year) rate (%) depreciation (%)

Buildings Straight-line depreciation 10.00-20.00 0.00-10.00 4.50-10.00
Machinery equipment Straight-line depreciation 3.00 -20.00 0.00-14.00 4.50-33.33
Transportation equipment Straight-line depreciation 3.00-10.00 0.00-10.00 9.00-33.33
Electronic eguipment and

Straight-line depreciation 3.00-10.00 0.00-10.00 9.00-33.33
other equipment
Decoration of fixed assets Straight-line depreciation 5.00 0.00 20.00

Not

Land

depreciated
3. Impairment test method and provision for impairment loss of fixed assets

If any sign indicates that impairment is incurred in fixed assets on balance sheet date, the
corresponding provision for impairment shall be withdrawn according to the difference

between book value and recoverable amount.
4. Recognition basis and valuation methods for {ixed assets acquired under finance leases

The lease which meets one or more criteria listed below is recognized as finance lease: (1)
ownership of the leased assets is transferred to the leasee upon the expiry of the lease; (2) the
leasee has option on the purchase of leased assets and the purchase price is expected to be far
below the fair value of the leased assets during the exercise of the option so that it can be
reasonably certain since the commencement date of the lease that the leasee will exercise the
option; (3) even if the ownership of the leased assets is not transferred, the lease term accounts
for most of the service life of the ieased assets [normally, 75% (including]]; (4) the current
value of the minimum amount paid by the leasee at the commencement of the lease is almost
equal to [90% (including)] of the fair value of the leased assets at that time; the current value of
the minimum amount received by the leaser at the commencement of the lease is almost equal
to [90% (including)] of the fair value of the leased assets at that time; (5) the property of the
leased assets is special and the leased assets can be used by the leasee only if not modified
significantly.
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For the fixed assets under finance lease, the lower of the fair value of leased assets at the
commencement of the lease and the present value of the minimum lease payments shall be
recognized as cost and depreciation shall be charged as per the depreciation policies for

self-owned fixed assets.
{XIX) Construction in process

1. Construction in progress that has reached the expected usable condition will be transferred
to fixed assets based on the actual cost. Construction in progress that has reached the expected
usable condition but completion settlement has not been carried out shall be transferred to
fixed assets as per their assessed value; after completion settlement is officially finished, this
provisional estimate value shall be adjusted based on the actual cost but the original

depreciation amount will not be adjusted.

2. If any sign indicates that impairment is incurred in construction in progress on balance sheet
date, the corresponding provision for impairment shall be made according to the difference

between book value and recoverable amount.
(XX) Borrowing costs
1. Recegnition principle of capitalization of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attribulable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying asset are capitalized when expenditures for such asset and borrowing costs are
incurred and recognized in the cost of related assets. Other borrowing costs are recognized as

an expense in the period in which they are tncurred.
2. The capitalization period of borrowing costs

(1) The borrowing costs which meet the following conditions simultaneously shall begin to he
capitalized: 1) expenditures to assets have already been incurred; 2) borrowing costs have
already been incurred; 3) the acquisition and construction or production activities necessary

for the assets to reach the expected usable or marketable condition have already started.

{2) Where the acquisition and construction or production of a qualified asset is interrupted
abnormally and the interruption period lasts for more than 3 months, the capitalization of the
borrowing costs shall be suspended. The borrowing costs occurred during such suspension
period shall be recognized as current expenses until the acquisition and construction or

production of the asset restarts.

(3) When the qualified assets under acquisition and construction or production reach the
expected usable or marketable condition, the capitalization of the borrowing costs shall be

ceased.
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3. Capitalization amount of borrowing costs

When funds are borrowed under a specific-purpose borrowing, the amount of interest to be
capitalized is the actual interest expense incurred on that borrowing for the period less any
bank interest earned from depositing the borrowed funds before being used on the asset or any
investment income on the temporary investment of those funds, When funds are borrowed
under general-purpose borrowings, the Company determines the amount of interest to be
capitalized on such borrowings by applying a capitalization rate to the weighted average of the
excess of cumulative expenditures on the asset over the amounts of specific-purpose
borrowings. The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the interest rates applicable to

the general-purpose borrowings.
(XX1} Intangible assets

1. Intangible assets include land use rights, patents and non-patent technology, and so on. They

are initially recognized at cost.

2. The intangible assets with limited service life shall be systematically and properly amortized
hased on the expected implementation model of economic benefits relevant to the intangible
assets within service life; the intangible assets whose expected implementation model cannot

be reliably determined shall be amortized in straight line method over the following useful

fives:
Item Estimated useful life (year) Basis
Land use right 20-70 years Statutory transfer year / estimated service life
Software 5-10 years Estimated useful life
Patent right 5-year and 8-month - 10 years Estimated useful life
Non-patent technology 5 years Estimated useful life
Trademark right 10 years Estimated useful life

3. As to the intangible assets with determined service life, in event of signs for impairment on
the balance sheet date, the related impairment provision shall be calculated based on the
difference between the book value and the recoverable amount; as to the intangible assets
without determined service life and unavailable for service shall be tested for impairment no

matter whether there are impairment signs or not.

4, The expenditures in research stage of the internal project research & development shall be
charged to current profits and losses when occurred. The expenditures in development stage of
the internal project research & development can be recognized as intangible assets if the
conditions below are satisfied: {1} The intangible assets can be completed with the technical
feasibility of service or sales; (2) there is the intent to finish the intangible assets for service or

sales; {3) the model of economic benefits generated by operating the intangible assets,
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including the proof that there is a market for the products manufactured based on the
intangible assets or the assets themselves, and the usefulness of the assets which are to be used
internally; (4) there are sufficient technical, financial and other resource resources for the
development, usage or sale of the intangible assets; (5} the expenditures in development stage

of the intangible assets can be reliably measured.
(XXIT} Long-term assets impairment
1. fJudgment of signs of impairment

The company should judge whether there is any indication that the asset may be impaired on

the balance sheet date. The following signs indicate that the asset may have been impaired:

(1) The market price of assets has fallen sharply in the current period, and its decline is

significantly bigher than the expected decline due to the passage of time or normal use;

(2) The economic, technical or legal environment in which the company operates, and the
market in which the assets are located. In the current period, there will be major changes in the

near future, which will adversely affect the enterprise;

(3} The market interest rate or other market return on investment has increased in the current
period, thus affecting the discount rate of the present value of the estimated future cash flow of

the enterprise’s calculated assets, resulting in assets The recoverable amount is greatly reduced;
(4) There is evidence that the asset is obsolete or its entity has been damaged;
(5) The asset has been or will be idle, terminated or planned to be disposed of in advance;

(6) evidence reported internally by the enterprise indicates the asset The economic
performance has been lower or lower than expected, such as the net cash flow generated by the
asset or the realized aperating profit (or loss) is far lower [or higher than) the estimated

amount;

(7) Other indicates that the asset may have Signs of impairment.

2. Recoverable amount

Where an asset shows signs of impairment, its recoverable amount should be estimated.

The recoverable amount shall be determined based on the higher of the fair value of the assets
minus the disposal expenses and the present value of the estimated future cash flows of the

assets.

Disposal costs include legal fees related to the disposal of assets, related taxes, handling fees,

and direct costs incurred in bringing the assets to a saleable state.

The present value of the estimated future cash flow of the asset shall be determined by
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discounting the estimated future cash flow generated during the continuous use and final
disposal of the asset by selecting an appropriate discount rate. It is expected that the present
value of the future cash flow of the assets should take into account factors such as the estimated

future cash flow of the assets, service life and discount rate.

The measurement results of the recoverable amount indicate that if the recoverable amount of
the asset is lower than the carrying amount of the asset, the carrying amount of the asset should
be reduced to the recoverable amount, and the amount of the write-down is recognized as the
asset impairment loss, which is included in the current profit and loss. Provision for

corresponding asset impairment is made.
(XXI11) Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses shall be recorded according to the actual amount incurred and
averagely amortized by stages within the benefit period or the specified period. Long-term

deferred expenses are amortized using the straight-line method over the expected periods.
1. Depreciation methods

Straight-line depreciation.

2. Depreciable Life {Year)

According to the contract or estimated benefit period.

(XXIV] Employee benefits

Employee benefits refer to the various forms of remuneration or compensation for the service
provided by the employees or for termination of employment relationship otherwise than share
based payment. Employee benefits include short-term payroll, post-employment benefits,
termination benefits and other long-term employee benefits. Benefit provided to the spouse,
children, dependents, dependents of deceased employee and other beneficiaries are also

included in employee benefits,
1. Short-term employee benefits

The Company recognizes, in the accounting period in which an employee provides service,
short-term employee benefits actually incurred as liabilities, with a corresponding charge to
profit or loss or the cost of a relevant asset, otherwise than those recoegnized as cost of capital

required or permitted by other accounting standards.

Employee benefits payable on profit sharing plan are recognized when the following conditions

are met:

(1) There's current contractual or deemed obligation of the Company due to past events;
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(2) The amount of obligations arising from the profit sharing plan can be reliably measured. If
the obligation arising from prefit sharing plan is not required to be settled in full within 12
months from the end of the reporting period, relevant regulations on other long-term employee
benefits shall apply. Bonus accrued based on performance or employee’s contributions are part

of the bonus plans and shall be treated as short-term profit sharing.
2. Post-employment benefits
(1) Defined contribution plan

The Company shall recognize, in the accounting period in which an employce provides service,
the contribution payable to a defined contribution plan as a liability, with a corresponding
charge to the profit or loss for the current period or the cost of a relevant asset. Under a defined
contribution plan, when contributions are not expected to be settled in full within twelve
months from the end of the annual reporting pericd in which the employees render their
related service, the employee benefits payable shail be measured at the discounted value of all

contributions using a defined discount rate.
(2) Defined benefit plan

The Company shall attribute benefit obligations under a defined benefit plan to periods of
service provided by employees according to the formula determined by projected unit credit
method, with a corresponding charge to the profit and loss for the current period or the cost of
a relevant asset. When an employee’s service in later years will lead to a materially higher level
of benefit from the defined benefit plan than in earlier years, the Company shall attribute
accumulated defined benefit plan obligation with straight line method to the period from the
date when service provided by the employee first leads to Company’s benefit obligation under
the defined benefit plan to the date when future service provided by the employee will not lead
to material increase in defined benefit plan obligation. In determining the period to which the
benefit obligation shall attribute, the Company shall not consider the situation in which the

material increase in defined benefit plan obligation only as a result of future salary increases.

At the end of reporting period, the Company shall recognize the following components of

employee benefit cost arising from defined benefit plan:

(1) Service costs, comprising current service costs, past service costs and any gains and losses

on settlement.

@ Service costs, comprising current service costs, past serviceities, including interest income
on plan assets, interest cost on the defined benefit plan obligation and interest on the effect of

the asset ceiling.

(3) Service costs, comprising current service costs, past serviceities, including inteUnless other
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accounting standards requires or permits the inclusion of employee benefit costs in the cost of
assets, item (1) and (Z) above should he recognized in profit or loss for the current period; item

(3) should be recognized in comprehensive income.
3. Termination benefits
Termination benefits primarily include:

(1) Compensation provided to employees due to the termination of employment relationship

before due date of employment contract, whether employees agree with the termination or not.

{2) Compensation provided to employees to encourage them to accept employee curtailment
before the due date of employment contract, in which the employees have a choice of either to

stay in service or leave.

When termination benefits are provided, the Company recognizes employee henefit liabilities
for termination benefits, with a corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the current period,

at the earlier of the following dates:

(1) The date when the Company cannot unilaterally withdraw the offer of termination benefits

because of an employment termination plan or a curtailment proposal, or

{(2)dThe date when the Company recognizes costs or expenses related to a restructuring that

involves the payment of termination benefits.

If the termination benefits are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the reporting period ih which the termination benefit is recognized, the Company shall appty
the relevant regulations of short-term employee benefits; if the termination benefits are not
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the reporting period in which
the termination benefit is recognized, the Company shall apply the relevant regulations of

long-term empioyee benefits.4. Other long-term employee benefits

For other long-term benefits provided to employees that meet the terms of defined
contribution plans shall be treated as defined contribution plans. Other long-term benefits
otherwise than above shall be recognized and measured to net liabilities or net assets according

to relevant requirements of defined benefit plans.
(XXV) Estimated liabilities

1. If the obligations pertinent to contingencies such as external security, arbitration, product
warranty and onerous contract become the current obligations of the Company, the
performance of the obligations is likely to result in the outflow of economic benefits from the
Company, and the amount of the obligations can be measured reliably, the obligations are

recognized as estimated liabilities by the Company.
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2. The Company initially measures the estimated liabilities based ¢n the best estimate required
to be paid when performing relevant current obligations, and reviews the book value of the

estimated liabilities on the balance sheet date,
(XXV1) Revenue
1. Sales of goods

The revenue from sales of goods is recognized under the following conditions: {1} major risks
and rewards concerning the ownership of commodity have been transferred to the buyer; (2)
neither the continuous management right usually related to the ownership is retained nor
effective control over sold goods is effected; {3) the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably; (4) relevant economic benefits is likely to flow into the Company; (5) relevant costs

incurred or to be incurred can be measured reliabiy.
Specific principles:
Auto parts business except for that of Al Overseas Business Group:

Major domestic sales target can be divided into two categories: one is the whole vehicle

manufacturers, and the other is the automobile after-sales repair market.

For the sales model of facing the whole vehicle manufacturers, it refers to a sales model that the
products are directly sold to the whole vehicle manufacturers. For the sales model of facing the
automobile after-sales repair market, it refers to a sales model that the products are sold to the

customers purchasing auto parts pursuant to the order thereof.
Specific criteria to recognize the revenue of manufacturers from sale of whole vehicle:

Where the stock commodities are still managed as inventories outside the warehouse, when
they are shipped cutside the warehouse, the sales cannot be recognized. Where commaodities
outside the warehouse are dispatched to the whole vehicle manufacturers, and are accepted by
them, the sales can be recognized. Accerding to the provided quantity of commodity received
and accepted by the whole vehicle manufacturers, such quantity of commodity are recognized
as the sales volume, and the sales revenue from the dispatched commodities outside the
warehouse is recognized at the price as agreed with clients under the premise that the
dispatched commodities outside the warehouse meet the above recognition criteria of sales

revenue.
Specific criteria to recognize the sales revenue from the automobile after-sales repair market:

The revenue from sales of products bought by the customers purchasing auto parts can be

recognized after such products inspected and accepted by the customers.

Auto parts business of Al Overseas Business Group:
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The guantity and number of commodities can be recognized when there is an evidence that the
Company has transferred the main risks and rewards of ownerstip of the commodities to the
buyer (generally referring to the delivery time point of the commodities and samples as agreed
in the contract); the revenue can be recognized when the price is fixed and the ownership is

transferred (generally referring to date of bill of lading).
2. Rendering of labor service

When the outcome of a transaction concerning rendering of labor service can be reliably
estimated on balance sheet date (the following conditions are met: the amount of the revenue
can be measured in a reliable way; relevant economic benefits may flow to the Company; the
completion schedule of transaction can be confirmed reliably; the costs incurred or to be
incurred during the transaction can be measured in a reliable way), relevant revenue from
rendering of labor service is recognized via percentage of completion method, and the
completion schedule of transaction is determined based on the percentage of service rendered
to the total serve rendered or costs incurred to the total estimated costs. When the outcome of a
transaction concerning rendering of labor service cannot be reliably estimated, if the incurred
labor service cost can be compensated, the revenue from rendering of labor force shall be
recagnized based on the amount of the incurred labor service cost, and the cost shall be carried
forward in the same amount. If the incurred labor service cost cannot be compensated, the
incurred labor service cost shall be charged to current profits and losses, and the revenue shall

not be recognized.
3. Alienation of the right to use asset

If the relevant economic benefits may flow in the Company, and the amount of the revenue can
be calculated reliably, the revenue from alienation of the right to use the asset shall be
recognized. Interest income shall be calculated and confirmed in accordance with the length of
time for which the Company's cash & cash equivalents is used by others and the effective
interest rate; royalty revenue shall be calculated and confirmed in accordance with the charging

time and method specified in relevant contract or agreement,
(XXV11) Government grants

1. Government grants include asset-related government grants and income-related government

grants

2. If the government grant is monetary asset, it is recorded at the amount received or receivable.

If the government grant is non-monetary asset, it shall be measured at the fair value; if the fair

value cannot be obtained, then it shall be measured at nominal amount.
3. Gross method is adopted

{1} The government grants related to assets shall be recognized as deferred incomes; and shall
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be evenly allocated into the profits and losses during useful life of related assets. If the related
assets are sold, transferred, scrapped or damaged hefore the end of life of the assets, the
halance of the relevant deferred incomes that have not been allocated shall be transferred to

the current profits and losses of asset disposal.

{2) The government grants related to income shall be recognized as deferred incomes for
compensation of future related expenses or loss and recognized in current profits and losses
after related expenses are identified; if compensation of related expenses or losses already

incurred, they shall be directly recognized in the current profits and losses.

The company adopted gross method for all government grants except for palicy concessional

foan discount,

4. For government grants both related to assets and income, they shall be treated as different
accounting treatments. The whole will be classified as government grants related to income if

cannot be distinguished

5. Government grants related to daily operating activities will be calculated into other incomes

or write down related cost in accordance with the business nature.
(30{VII) Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities

1. Deferred tax assets and liabilities shall be measured at the temporary differences between
the book value of certain assets or liabilities and their tax base {or between the book value of
those ltem that are not recognized as assets or liabilities and their tax base that can be

determined according to tax laws}, and the tax rates that are expected fo apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled according to the requirements of tax

laws.

2. Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences are recognized to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will he available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. At balance sheet date, the book value of deferred tax assets shall be
reviewed and if it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future to
allow the benefit of deferred tax assets to be utilized, the Company shall recognize deferred tax

assets that not been recognized in previous period.

3. On balance sheet date, the book value of deferred income tax assets shall be reviewed; if it is
unlikely to acquire sufficient taxable income that may be used to offset the interests of deferred
income tax assets, the book value of the deferred income tax assets shall be reduced. Any such
reduction in amount shall be reversed to the extent if it becomes likely that sufficient taxable

profits can be obtained.

4. Current and deferred tax of the Company shall be recognized as income or an expense and

included in profit or loss for the current period, except to the extent that the tax arises from: (1)
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a business combination; and (2) a transaction or event which is recognized directly into

owner's equity.
{XXIX} Operating lease and finance lease
1.0perating lease

When the Company is the lessee, the rents shall be charged to relevant assets or be recognized
as current profits and losses as per the straight-line method at each period within the lease
term. The incurred initial direct expenses shall be directly charged to current profits and losses.

Contingent rents are credited to profit or loss in the period in which they are actually incurred.

When the Company is the lessor, the rents shall be recognized as current profits and losses as
per the straight-line method at each period within the lease term. The incurred initial direct
expenses shall be directly charged to current profits and lasses except those with large amount
shall be capitalized and be charged to profits and losses. Contingent rents are credited to profit

ar loss in the period in which they are actually incurred.
Z.Finance lease

When the Company is the lessee, on the commencement date of the lease term, the company
shall recognize the fair value of leased assets or the present value of minimum lease payment
(whichever is lower) as the entry value of the leased assets, and recognize the minimum lease
payment as the entry value of long-term accounts payable and the difference between the entry
values as unrecognized financing fees. The incurred initial direct expenses shali be charged to
the value of leased assets. The current financing expenses shall be calculated and recognized as

per the effective interest method at each period within the lease term.

When the Company is the lessor, on the commencement date of the lease term, the company
shall recognize the sum of the minimum lease receipts on the lease commencement date and
the initial direct expenses as the entry value of the finance lease receivables, and record the
unguaranteed residual value at the same time; the balance between the sums of the minimum
lease receipts, the initial direct expenses and the unguaranteed residual value, and the sum of
their present values shall be recognized as unrealized financing income. The current financing
income shall be calculated and recognized as per the effective interest method at each period

within the lease term.
IV. Taxes
(1) Main taxes and tax rates

Tax type Taxation basis Tax rate (%)

Taxable VAT is the balance of output tax
Value-added tax 6.00,10.00,13.00,16.00
subtracted by deductible income tax
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Tax type Taxation basis

Tax rate {%)

Carporate income tax Taxable incoine
i. Calculated and collected at 1.2% after deducting 30%

or 20% of the original price of the property in case of

Property tax

ad valorem taxation;

ii. Calculated and collected at 12.00% of rental income
Tax for land use right Land area

Urban  maintenance and

Turnover tax payahle
construction tax
Educational surcharges Turnover tax payabie

Local educational surcharges  Turnover tax payable

Other taxes Cellected as stipulated by the state

25.00

1.20/12.60

CNY 4.00/m2, 6.00/m?

5.00,7.00

3.00
1.09, 2.00

Note 1: Operational entities other than the Al Overseas Business Group: Qutput VAT is

calculated based on taxable sales revenue and service revenue calculated in accordance with tax

laws, and VAT payable shall be the difference between the output VAT and input VAT deductible

in the same period;

The output tax shall be calculated by Al Thailand according to the tax laws and regulations of

the Al Thailand's registration place of Rayong Province, and the value added tax shall be paid

based on the output tax after deducting the deductible input tax in current period;

The output tax (goods and services tax) shall be calculated at 10% tax rate of the taxable

income by Al Australia Business Group, and the value added tax shall be paid based on the

output tax after deducting the deductible input tax in current period;

Disclosure of information about taxpayers applying different enterprise income tax rates:

Name of taxpayer Income tax rate
Operational entities other than the Al Overseas Business Group 25%
HHL. AIGMBH. AISH 15%
HONG KONG AQOTECAR INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED 16.5%
AF Belgium 34%
Al US Business Group. Al Slovakia 21%
Al Thailand, Al Luxembourg 20%
Al Australia Business Group, Air Systems, $.de R.L. de C.V. 30%
AlLUK 22%

(1T Tax preference and approval

Al Thailand's factory located in the Free Trade Zone enjoys the tax exemption of raw materials
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and machine equipment VAT in accordance with the Thailand VAT law. In addition, the
preferential policies about the enterprise income tax also apply to it according to the rules of
“investment promoation act B.E.2520]" issued by the government of Thailand, which means the

tax exemption of enterprise income tax on specific products in current period.

On December 6, 2019, AISH obtained the ‘High-tech Enterprise Certificate’ (certificate number:
GR201931005175) jointly issued by the Shanghai Science and Technology Department, the
Shanghai Municipal Department of Finance, the Shanghai National Taxation Bureau, and the
Shanghai Local Taxation Bureau and recognized the company as a high-tech enterprise with a
validity period of three years. During the reporting period, the corporate income tax reduction

was levied at 15%.

V. Explanations on Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and
Corrections of Early Errors

(I) Changes of accounting policies

1. Since January 1, 2019, the relevant provisions of the Ministry of Finance's Notice on Revising
and Issuing the Format of Financial Statements of General Enterprises in 2019 {Caikuai [2019]

Na.6) have been adopted. The impact of the change in accounting policies is as follows:

Change of accounting policies and . . .
Name and amount of influenced items in the financial statements

Feasons

The amount of notes receivable at the end of the period is CNY 0.00, and the amount at
Divide "notes receivable and accounts
. the beginning of the period is CNY 0.00;
receivable” into accounts receivable and
The amount of accounts receivable at the end of the period is CNY 288,324,269.70, and

the amount at the beginning of the period is CNY 263,349,179.58.
The amount of notes payable at the end of the period is CNY 69,921,918.81, and the

notes receivable to list

Divide “notes payable and accounts X .
. amount at the beginning of the peried is CNY 112,781,081.20;
payable " into accounts payable and notes .
The amount payable at the end of the period is CNY 241,575,985.60, and the amount at

payable to list
the beginning of the pericd is CNY 273,241,476.01.

The income statement "minus: Asset

impairment loss" is adjusted to "plus: The amount of asset impairment losses listed in this period is CNY-119,070,009.70,
asset impairment loss (losses are filled and the amount shown in the previous period was CNY-5,977,862.24
with"-")

Impact on the parent company's financial statements: None.

2. Approved by the management, Since January 1, 2019, the Company has adopted the relevant
provisions of Accounting Standards for Enterprises No.22-Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Instruments (Accounting [2017] No.7), Accounting Standards for Enterprises
No.23-Transfer of Financial Assets [Accounting [2017] N0.8), Accounting Standards for
Enterprises No.24-Hedge Accounting {(Accounting [2017] No.9) and Accounting Standards for
Enterprises No.37-Presentation of Financial Instruments {Accounting [2017] No.14) to adjust

46




the amount of retained earnings at the beginning of the year and other relevant items in the

financial statements according to the cumulative impact, without adjusting the information

during the comparable period. The impact of the change in accounting policies is as follows:

Change of accounting policies and reasons

Name and amount of influenced items in the

financial statements

Add ‘Credit Impairment Loss’ statement item

Financial assets are classified as financial assets measured
at amortized cost, financial assets measured at fair value
and their changes included in other comprehensive
income, and financial assets at fair value through current
profit and loss according to the business model managed
by the company and the characteristics of the contract
cash flow of financial assets.

The company sells a small amount of receivables through
non-recourse factoring in daily capital management. Since
the value is very small relative to the total amount of
receivables, the business model for managing receivables
is still to collect contractual cash for the purpose, the
company's accounts receivable after January 1, 2019 are
still classified as amortized value measurement and
reported as accounts receivable.

The company and its subsidiaries as the needs of the daily
cash management will be an enderse and discount
banker’s acceptance bills (and the amount exceeds 50%)
naot just hold expires collection. Therefore, the banker's
acceptance bill management business mode includes both
cash flow as the goal and to sell as the goal. Therefore, on
fanuary 1, 2019, the company reclassified the above
banker's acceptance bills to financial assets measured at
fair value and their changes are included in other
comprehensive income as financing receivables.

For certain wealth management products such as
structured depaosits held by the company, their earnings
are linked to variables such as gold and foreign exchange.
After January 1, 2019, the company analyzed its
contractual cash flows which is not only for the payment
of principal and the payment of interest based on the
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The amount of credit impairment loss is CNY

-2,966,840.22 in the current period.

The amount of notes receivabie at the end of the
period decreased by CNY 21,497,035.66, and the
amount at the beginning of the period decreased
by CNY 26,124,583.99;

The amount of receivables listed at the end of
the financing period was CNY 21,497,035.66,
and the amount at the beginning of the period

was CNY 26,124,583.99.

The amount of trading financial assets listed at
the end of the period is CNY 0.00;
The amount of other non-current financial assets

at the end of the period is CNY 0.00.




Name and amount of influenced itetns in the

Change of accounting policies and reasons
financial statements

outstanding principal, then the wealth management
product was reclassified as a financial asset measured at
fair value and its changes included in the current profit
and loss, and reported as trading financial assets and

other non-current financial assets.
Impact on the parent company's financial statements: None.

3. With the approval of the management, the Company has adopted the relevant provisions of
the Accounting Standards for Enterprises No.7-Exchange of Non-monetary Assets (Caikuai
[2019] No.8) since June 10, 2019, Enterprises shall adjust the exchange of non-monetary assets
between January 1, 2019 and the implementation date of the Standards according to the
provisions of the Standards. Enterprises do not need to make retrospective adjustinents to the
exchange of non-monetary assets before January 1, 2019. The impact of the change in

accounting policies is as follows:
The above accounting policy changes have no impact on the current financial statements.

4. With the approval of the management, the Company has adopted the relevant provisions of
"Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.12-Debt Restructuring” (Caikuai [2019]
N6.9) since June 17, 2019. Enterprises shall adjust the debt restructuring that occurred
between January 1, 2019 and the implementation date of these standards according to the
provisions of the standards. Enterprises do not need retrospective adjustment for debt
restructuring before January 1, 2019. The impact of the change in accounting policies is as

follows:

The above accounting policy changes have no impact on the current financial statements.
(IT} Changes of accounting estimate: None.

(I11) Correction of prior significant accounting errors: None.

(IV) Adjustments to the opening balance on first-time adoption of the new accounting standard

on financial instruments
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Monetary unit: CNY

ltem December 31, 2018 January 1, 2019 adjusted amount

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 82,145,755.12 82,145,755.12
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ftem December 31, 2018 january 1, 2019 adjusted amount
Trading financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profits and losses
Notes receivable 26,124,583.99 -26,124,583.99

Accounts receivable

263,349,179,58

263,349,179.58 i

Accounts receivable financing

26,124,583.99

26,124,583.99

Prepaynments

31,147,702.33

Other receivables

31,147,702.33

25,592,760.11

25,592,790.11

Including: interest receivable

dividends receivable

{nventories

119,496,976.25

119,496,976.25

Assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets due within one year

Other current assets

5,009,353.60

5,009,353.60

Total current assets

552,866,340.98

552,866,340.98

Non-current assets:

f——

Investments in debt securities

Available-for-sale financial assets

Other Investments in debt securities

Held-to-maturity investment

L.ong-term receivables

Long-term equily investment

194,730,133.38

194,730,133.38

Investment in other equity instruments

Other non-current financial assets

Investment property 18,304,144.61 18,304,144.61
Fixed assets 17381443648 173,814,436.48
Construction in process 108,418,266.18 108,418,266.18
Intangible assets 83,056,862.81 83,056,862.81
—| ]
Development expenditures 202,046,050.14 202,046,050.14

Goodwill 450,205,571.51 450,205,571.51
Long-term deferred expenses 5.947.807.55 594780755
Deferred income tax assets 42,015,424.05 42,015,424.05
Other non-current assets 6,594,516.69 6,594,516.69

Total non-current assets 1,285,133,213.40 1,285,133,213.40
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tem

December 31, 2018

January 1, 2019

adjusted amount

Total assets

1,837,999,554.38

1,837,999,554.38

Current liabilities:

Short-term loan

156,389,988.00

156,389,988.00

Trading financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profits and losses

Derivative financial liabilities

Notes payable

112,781,081.20

112,781,081.20

Accounts payable

273,241,476,01

273,241,476.01

Receipts in advance

20,367.71

20,367.71

Employee benefits payable

15,192,981.94

15,192,981.94

Tax and surcharges payable

5,504,331.23

5,504,331.23

Other payables

161,114,684.96

161,114,684.96

Including: interest payable

dividends payable

Liabilities classified as held for sale

Non-current labilities due within one year

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

724,244,911.05

724,244,911.05

Naon-current liabilities:

A Reserve for insurance contracts

Long-term loans

31,904,970.12

31,904,970.12

Bonds payable

Including: preferred stock

perpetual bond

Lease liabilities

Long-term payables

6,806,282.72

6,806,282.72

Long-term employee benefits payable

1,279,067.48

1,279,067.48

Estimated liabilities 14,763,945.02 14,763,945.02
Deferred revenues 1,320,000.00 1,320,000.00
Deferred income tax liabilides 26,572,964.79 2657296479

Other non-current liahilities:

Total non-current liahilities

82,647,230.13

82,647,230.13

Total liabilities

806,892,141.18

806,892,141.18
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Item December 31, 2018

January 1, 2019 adjusted amount

Owners’ equity

L

Paid in capital

859,161,408.36 859,161,408.36

Other equity instruments

Capital Reserve

Other comprehensive incomes

31,329,041.59 31,329,041.59

Surplus reserve

Undistributed profit

Total equity attributable to owners of the parent company

140,616,963.25 140,616,963.25

1,031,107,413.20 1,031,107,413.20

Minority equity

Total owner's equity

Total liabilities and ownet's equity

1,03 1,107,413<20J

1,031,107,413.20

1,837,999,554.38 1,837,999,554.38

Explanation of the adjustment of each item:

December 31, 2018 (Original Financial Instruments
Standard)

ftem calculate category Book value

Notes receivable Amortized cost

20,124,583.99

January 1, 2019 (New Financial Instruments

Standard)
calculate
Item Book value
category
Measured at fair
Accounts
) value through other
receivable 26,124,583.99
comprehensive
financing

income

Note: The company and its subsidiaries endorse and discount bank acceptance bills (and

the amount exceeds 50%) according to their daily capital management needs, not just holding

to maturity for collection, so the business model of managing bank acceptance bills is Including

the target of collecting contractual cash flow and the target of selling, so on January 1, 2019, the

company reclassified the above bank acceptance draft of CNY¥26,124,583.99t0 the financial

value measured at fair value and its changes included in other comprehensive income Assets

are listed as receivable financing,

Balance Sheet

Monetary unijt: CNY

Item December 31, 2018

January 1,2019 adjusted amount

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

263,333.30 263,333.30

Trading financial assets
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Item

December 31, 2018

january 1,2019

adjusted amount

Financial assets at fair value through profits and losses

Derivative financial assets

Notes receivable

Accounts receivahble

Accounts receivable financing

Prepayments

Other receivables

152,876,274.80

152,876,274.80

Including: interest receivable

dividends receivable

Inventories

Contracl assets

Assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets due within one year

Other current assets

491,507.79

491,507.79

Total current assets

153,631,115.89

153,631,115.89

Nan-current assets:

Investments in debt securities

Available-for-saie financial assets

Other investments in debt securities

Held-to-maturity investment

Long-term receivables

Long-term equity investment

857,089,755.50

857,089,755.50

Investment in other equity instruments

Other non-current financial assets

Investment property

Fixed assets

Construction in process

Intangible assets

Development expenditures

Goodwill

Long-term deferred expenses

Deferred income tax assets

Other non-current assets
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Item December 31, 2018 January 1, 2019 adjusted amount
Total non-current assets ] 857,089,755.50 857,089,755.59
Tatal assets 1,010,720.871.39 1,010,720,871.39
Current liabilities:
Short-term loan 148,983,321.80 148,983,321.80

Trading financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profits and losses

Derivative financial liabilities

Notes payable

Accounts payable

Receipts in advance

Contract assets

Empioyee benefits payable

‘Tax and surcharges payable

Other payables

4,352,793.73

4,352,793.73

Including: interest payable

dividends payable

Liabilities cassified as heid for sale

Non-current liabilities due within one year

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

153,336,115.53

153,336,115.53

Non-current liabilities:

A Reserve for insurance contracts

Long-term loans

Bonds payable

Including: preferred stock

perpetual bond

Lease liabilities

Long-term payables

Long-term employee benefits payable

Estimated liabilities

Deferred revenues

Deferred income tax liabilities

Other non-current liabilities:
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ltem

December 31, 2018

January 1, 2019 adjusted amount

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

153,336,115.53

153,336,115.53

Owner's equity

Paid in capital 859,161,408.36 859,161,408.36
Other equity instruments

Capital Reserve

Other comprehensive incomes -1.214,712.05 -1,214,712.05
Surplus reserve

Undistributed profit -561,940.45 -561,940.45

Total owner's equity

857,384,755.86

857,384,755.86

Total liabilities and owner’s equity

1,010,720,871.39

1,010,720,871.39

VI. Notes to Main Items of Consolidated Financial Statements

Note: the "beginning" refers to January 1, 2019; "Ending" refers to December 31, 2019, "the

previous period” refers to 2018 while “the current period” refers to 2019.

1. Cash & cash equivalents

(1) Presented by category

Item

Ending balance

Beginning balance

Cash on hand

Cash at bank

Other cash and cash equivalents

Total

Of which: the total amount of

money deposited abroad

146,011.17
38,186,682.77
128,591,446.86

24,140.80
21,738,702.44

257,132.57
45,609,519.79
36,279,102.76

$2.145,755.12
15,069,100.10

{2) Ending balance of cash and cash equivalents are limited to use including pledge, frozen are

as follows:
Item Ending balance
Bank acceptance bills margin 14,591,446.86
Pledge 114,000,000.00
Total 128,591,446.86

(3} Ending balance of oversea deposit and fund subjected to restrictions in remittance: None.
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2. Accounts receivable

(1) Disclosure by Aging

Aging Ending balance
Within 1 year (including 1 year) 293,024,729.43
1-2 years (including 2 years) 4,220,369.01
2-3 years (including 3 years) 776,799.40
3-4 years (including 4 years) 492,96791
4-5 years (including 5 years) :
More than 5 years 306,130.10 I
Intal 298,820,995.85
(2) Disclosure by the bad debt provision method classification
Ending balance
Book balance Provision of bad debts i
Category Percentage
Percentage Baok value
Amount Amount of provision
(%)
(%)
Provision of bad debts by
120,708,378.64 40.39 426,733.88 0.35 120,281,644.76
single item
Provision of bad debts by
Credit nsk characteristic 178,112,617.21 5961 10,069,992.27 5.65 168,042,624.94
combination
Total 298,820,99585 100.00 1049672615 288,324,269.70
Continued:
Beginning balance
Book balance Provision of bad debts
Category
Percentage Percentage Book value
Amount Amount of prevision
(%)
(%)
Pravision of bad debts by
139,496,536.19 51.53 177,172.55 0.13 139,319,363.64
single item
Pravision of bad debts by
Credit risk characteristic 131,208485.40 48.47 7,178,669.46 5.47 124,029,81594
cambination
Total 270,705.021.59 100,00 1355.842.01 263,349.179.568
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Provision of bad debts by single item:

Items
Book balance

Beginning balance

Provision of bad

Percentage of

Reason for accrual

debts provision (%)
Provision for bad debts of Expected not to be
120,708,378.64 426,733.88 0.35
receivables fully recovered
Total 120.708.378.64 426,733.88

Provision of bad debts by combination:

Items of Provision by combination: Provision of bad debts by Credit risk characteristic

combination
Beginning balance
liems Percentage of
Accounts receivable Provision of bad debts
) provision (%)
Within 1 year (including 1 year) 172,316,350.79 8.615,817.54 5.00
1-2 years (including 2 years) 4,220,369.01 422,036.90 10.00
2-3 years (including 3 years) 776,799.40 233,039.82 30.00
More than 5 years 799,098.01 799,098.01 100.00
Total 176.112,617.21 10,069,992.27

Recognition criteria and description of bad debts accrued by combination:

Except for the accounts receivable that have been separately provided for impairment, the

company's actual loss rate is based on the same or similar previous years and the combination

of accounts receivables with similar credit risk characteristics divided by age combined with

current situations.

(3] Receivables actually written off during the period: None

{4} Conditions of bad debts provision

Amount of change in the current period

Beginning
Category
balance Provision

Accrued

Other

Reversed or

recovered

or reversed

changes
callected

Ending

balance

Provision of bad
debts

7.355,842.01 3,140,884.14

Total 235584201 3.140.884.14
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(5) Top 5 accounts receivable in terms of ending balance:

Ending balance of

Nature of Percentage of tota)
Name of company Amount Aging provision
receivables receivables (%)
for bad debts

Company 1 Goods payment 54,627,348.66  Within 1 year 18.28 2,731,367.43
Company 2 Goods payment 2461922396  Within 1 year 8.24 1,230,961.20
Company 3 Goods payment 22,744,365.34  Within 1 year 7.61
Company 4 Goods payment 1897599611  Within I year &35 948,799.81
Company 5 Goods payment 1578768472 Within 1 year 5.28 789,384.24

Total 136,754,618.79 4576 570051268

(6) Account receivables that terminated due to the transfer of financial assets: None.

(7) Amount of assets and liabilities transferred from receivables that continue to be involved:

None,

3. Accounts receivable financing

ltems Ending balance Beginning balance
Bank acceptance bill 21,497,035.66 26,124,583.99
Total 21.497.035.66 26,124,583.99

Changes in the increase and decrease of the receivables financing and changes in fair value in
the current period: None.

Other instructions:

The company and its subsidiaries endorse and discount bank acceptance bills (and the amount
exceeds 50%) depending on their daily capital management needs, not just holding to maturity
for collections, so the business model for managing bank acceptance bhills includes both the
objective of collecting contractual cash flow and selling. Therefore, the company reclassified the
abave bank acceptance bills into financial assets measured at fair value and their changes
included in other comprehensive income, which are listed as receivables financing,

4. Prepayments

(1) Presented by aging
Ending Percentage Beginning Percentage
Aging
balance (%) balance (%)
Within 1 year (including 1
20,572913.23 98.63 26,241,945.43 84.25
year)
1-2 years (including 2 years) 283,370.58 136 4,785,887.72 15.37
2-3 years (including 3 years) 620.60 1,436.18
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Ending Percentage Beginning Percentage

Aging
balance (%) balance {%)
More than 3 years 1,450.00 0.01 118,433.00 0.38
Total 20,858,353.81 100.00 31,147,792.33 100.09

There is no significant prepayments overdue more than one year at the end of the period.

(2} Ending balances of prepayment to suppliers are at the top five

Name of company Ending balance Percentage (%)
Company 1 1,180,863.04 5.66
Company 2 792,239.82 3.80
Company 3 776,138.85 3.72
Company 4 72857408 3.49
Company 5 724,559.21 3.47
Total 4.204,37500 20.14

5. Other receivables
(1} Summary

items Ending balance Beginning balance

Interest receivable

Dividend receivable

Other receivahles 19,881,001.57 25,592,790.11

Total 19.881.001.57 25,592,790.11

(2} Other receivables

1) Disclosure by Aging

Aging Ending balance
Within 1 year (including 1 year} 19,801,033.48
1-2 years (including 2 years]) 271,404.00
2-3 years (including 3 years) 129,268.05
3-4 years (including 4 years) 2,500.00
4-5 years (including 5 years} 182,922.58
More than 5 years 1,114,002.00

Total 21.501.136.11
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2) Book balance of ather receivables classified by nature

Nature of amount

Ending balance

Beginning balance

Petty cash 775,708.23 1,215916.70
Deposits and security deposit 181,500.00 1,155,501.02
Intercompany loans 6.276.060.71
. Reimbursed fee 14,264,861.17 25,015,544.85
Total 21,501,130.11 27,386.962.57
3) Conditions of bad debts provision
Changes in the current period
Beginning Accrued Other Ending
Category Reversed or
balance Provision recovered changes batance
collected
or reversed
Provision of bad debts 1,794,172.46 -174,04392 1,620,128.54
Total 179417246  -174.043.92 1,620,128.54
Significant provisions reversed or collected during current period: None.
4) There are no other receivables actually written off in the current period.
5) Top S accounts other receivable in terms of ending balance:
Ending
Percentage of
balance of
Name of company Nature of amount  Ending balance Aging total of other
provision for
receivables {%)
bad debts
Company 1 Intercompany loans 6,279,060.71 Within 1 year 29 20
Company 2 Reimbursed fee 1,907,498.23 Within 1 year 8.87 113467681
Company 3 Reimbursed fee 748,350.61 Within 1 year 3.48
Company 4 Reimbursed fee 771,637.060 Within 1 year 3.59 38,581.85
Reimbursed fee Within 1 year ,1-2 years,2-3
Company 5 474,339.95 221 40,441.21
years
Towal 10.180,886.50 4235 1213,699.87

6] Government grants receivable: None,

7) Other receivables that were terminated due to the transfer of financial assets: None.

8) Amount of assets and liabilities that have been transferred to other receivables and continue
to be involved: None,
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6. [nventory

(1) Presented by category

Itemns

Ending balance

Provision for decline in

Book balance Book value
value
Raw materials 110,041,445.48 6,018,026.46 104,023,419.02
Goods in process 6,217,355.56 37,845.76 6,179,509.80
Finished goods 16,242,220.00 840,276.10 15,401,943.90
Materials in transit 9,145,817.06 9,145,817.06
Consumables 9,806,165.55 3,806,165.55
Work in process - outsourced
Merchandise inventories 811,128.41 811,128.41
Continued:
Beginning balance
Items Provision for decline in
Book balance Book value
value
Raw materials 82,547,606.99 2,771,516.01 79,776,000,98
Gooads in process 8,142,986.28 61,445.85 8,081,540.43
Finished goods 14,942,108.21 815,416.05 14,126,692.16
Materials in transit 7.430,526.82 7.430,526.82
Consumables 9,448,828.45 9,448,828.45
Work in process - outsourced 4,396.61 4,396.61
Merchandise inventories 682,299.79 53,398.99 628,900.80
Total 123,198,75315 370177690  119.496976.25
(2} Changes of inventory provision
Increase Decrease

Beginning
Items

Reversal or

Ending
Disposal

balance Provision Others balance

Written off of subsidiaries
Raw materials 2,771,516.01 4,414,647.96 1,168,137.51 6,018,026.46
Goods
61,445.85 23,600.09 37,845.76
in process
Finished goods 81541605 161,346.26 136,486.21 840,276.10
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Increase Decrease
Beginning Ending
ltems Reversal or Disposal
balance Provision Others balance
Written off of subsidiaries

Merchandise
srenan 53,398.99 53,398.99
inventories
Total 3,701.776,90 4.575994.23 1.381622.80 6.896,14832

(3) Description of inventory that includes capitalized amount of borrowing costs: None.

7.Non-current assets maturing within one year

Items Ending balance Beginning balance
Development project compensation 505,019.21
Total 505,01921

8. Other current assets

Hems Ending balance Beginning balance
Input tax to be deducted 8,976921472 3,227,633.20
Prepaid income tax 7.494,106.23 136,867.44
Deferred expenses within 1 year 305,982.83 1,2153,345.17
Others 567,496.42 491,507.79

Total 17,344.506.90 5009.353.60

9. Long-term equity investment

Changes in the current period

Company Name Beginning balance
' Additional investment Reduce investment

1. Joint ventures

SAI 184,541,621.88
AITTR 8,470,947 32
Subtotal 193.012,569.20

2.Associated enterprises
Nanjing Aoveac 1,717,564.18
Subtota) 171756418
Total 194,730,133.38



Continued:

Changes in the current period

[nvestment gains and losses

Other comprehensive

recognized under the equity

Other changes in
Cash bonus

income adjustment equity
method
21,264,168.37 15,000,000.00
-35,539.80
21.228,628.57 15,000,000.00
-195,599.99
-195,599.99
21,033,028.58 15,000,000.00
Continued:
Changes in the current period
Provision for Others: Foreign Ending balance Impairment of assets
impairment in the currency
current period translation
190,805,750.25
-74,366.72 8,361,040.80
=7 g2 199,166.831.05
1,521,964.19
1,521.964.19
74.366.72 200,688,795.24
10. Investment property
Items Buildings Land-use right Tatal

1. Original book value

(1) Beginning balance 12,190,603.95

(2) Increase in the current period
- Purchase

- Transfer in from Fixed assets
- Mergers and Acquisitions
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Items

Buildings

Land-use right

Total

{3) Decrease in the current period
- Disposal or write-off
- Other transfer out
(4) Ending balance
2. Accumulated depreciation
(1) Beginning balance
(2) Increase in the current period
- Provision
- Transfer in from Fixed assets
(3) Decrease in the current period
- Disposal or write-off
- Other transfer out
(4) Ending balance
3. Accumulated impairment
(1) Beginning balance
{2) Increase in the current period
- Provision
{3) Decrease in the current period
- Disposal or write-off
Other transfer out
{(4) Ending balance
4. Book value
(1) Ending book value

(2) Beginning book value

12.190,603.95

6,710,519.20

844.084.77

844,084.77

7,554,603.97

4.635.999.98
5,480,084.75

1428890477

1,464,84491
124,743.28

124,743.28

1,589,588.19

12,699,316.58
12,824.053.86

There is no investment properties without certificate of title.

11. Fixed assets
(1) Summary
Presented by category

fteins

Ending balance

26,479.508.72

17536401
968,828.05

20882800

Beginning balance

Fixed assets
Dispasal of fixed assets

Total

239,704,411.29

63

173.814,436.48



(2) Fixed assets

1) Fixed assets

Electrenic
Machinery Transportation Fixed assets
Items Buildings Land equipment and Tatal
Juiy t i t fitment
Other equipment
1. Original book value
(1) Beginning balance 43,003,162.97 293,072,493.19 3,316,051.42 3,827,698.25 88,251,240.29 43147064617
{2) Increase in the current
220091829 10854287528 4494280 39546835 9.381.633.95 120,565.838.67
period
Purchase 146,469.49 9,605,786.24 6,335,889.20 16,088.146.93
- Transferin from CIP 227,141.24 45,591,156.35 2575,651.74 8R,393,942.33
«  Translation differences of
1,827.307.56 13,345,930.6% 44,942.80 395,468.35 470,093.01 16,083,742.41
foraign currency statement
(3) Decrease in the current
6,056, 104946283 134485545 £120374.53
period
- Disposal 2.901,308.26 1,045,462.83 945,727.22 409649831
- Sad 907,189.70 68,594.18 975.763.88
- ‘rransferoutto LA 322,414.39 322,41439
- Transfer outto CIP 1,917,558.29 8,119.66 1925,677.95
- Others
{4) Ending balance 4520408176 395AA93IZZ7  Z3115%179 23,1666 9620801879 54391611026
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Electronic

Machinery Transportation Fixed assets
Hems Buildings Land equipment and Total
equipment equipment fitment
Other equipment
2. Accumulzted depreciation
(1) Beginning balance 23,873.455.56 171,166,367.17 1,999,446.80 58,575,074.17 25561434370
[2) Increase in the current
299856805  40.521614.54 3298379 8504316.1% 52,353.602.57
period
- Provision 2,297,042.59 30,900,567.33 309,628.40 7,958345.02 41.465.583,34
- Translation differences of
701,525.46 9,621,047.21 19,555.39 54597117 1088809923
foreign currency statement
[3} Decrease in the eurrent
4.166,58408 975.552.84 1.206.343.53 634846045
period
- Dusposal 2.201.308.26 975,552.84 945,727.22 482258832
- Sold 871,539.28 11,943.10 8348238
- Transfer outtg LA, 241,365.52 241,365.52
- Transfer out te Ci¢ 393,736.54 7.307.6% 491,044,723
Others
(4] Ending halance 268720236% 20752139763 138307775 £5.073,046,83 301.619,545.82
3. Accumuiated impajrment
(1) Beginning balance 2,041,865.94 2.041,865.94
{2) Increase in the current
50.287.21 25028721

period
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Electronic

Machinery Transporiation Fixed assets
ltems Buildings Land equipment and Tatat
equip quip 1 fitment
Other equipment
- Provisian 332,850.00 332,850,00
Translauon differences of
1743701 2743921
foreign curreacy stalement
{3} Decrease in the current
period
- Sold
(4) Ending balance 2592,153.15 24921
4. Book value
{1} Ending baok value 1833200760  1B577576144 25845364 422316660 3041497196 43970441029
{2} Beginning book value 1912970741  119.864.26000 131660462 382769825 2267016612 17381443648

2)Temporary idie fixed assets: None.
3)Fixed assets acquired under finance leases: None.
4}Fixed assets leased out through operating leases: Nane.

5)Fixed assets without certificate of title: None.
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12. Construction in progress
(1} Summary

Presented by category

ltems Ending balance Beginning balance
Construction in progress 38,178,138.68 108,418,266.18
Engineering material

Total 38,178.138.68 108,418,266.18

(2) Construction in progress

1) Balance of CIP

Ending balance

Beginning batance

ftems
Book balance Impairment Book value Book balance  Impairment Book value
Construction in progress 38,178,138.68 38,178,138.68 108,418,266.18 108,418,266.18
Total 38,178.138.68 38,178,138.68 108418.266.19 108.418.266.18
2) Changes of significant projects in current period
Opening Transfer out Other
Projects Budgets Increase Ending Balance
Balance to Fixed assets decrease
Moving Test Machine
8,501,364.92 1,523,995.36 3,991,595.06 5,515,590.42
(CWT) fiom ATAU
AISH - ES§ NIQ Heat
P 8,150,160.25 3,575,161.12 447,222.23 638,888.89 3,383,494 .46
ump
AINT assembly line 5,971,328.75 1,423,471.40 1,420,434.06 2,843,905.46
AISH — Chery —
CC28 SUV HVAC and 4,994,956.15 1,873,487.17 697,200.00 99,600.00 1,076,687.17
PTC
AISH—CILR DR HVAC 2,290,264.24 1,262,49391 592,560.00 452,394.33 217,539.58
Other project 16,824,582.49 5,880,092.59 5,656,161.47 3,608,112.11 576,126.50 7.352,015.45
Motor Line Investment
1,074,334.80 511,274.08 493,228.96 1,004,503.04
PQ35
EHAD Stands, Oil Carts
9,152,774.40 1,663,639.68 2,972,533.55 4,636,173.23
downpaytment
Double chamber heljum
1,5634,764.00 1,381,287.60 1,381,287.60
leak test & recovery sys
Franklin HVAC Assy
i 3,867,730.85 2,998,724.73 2,998,724.73
Line
Silver HVAC Assy Line 3,182,577.32 2,291,455.67 2,291,455.67
1.663/T6 assembly line 71,498,462.42  43,895,486.19 11,733,562.17  25,858,181.59  29,730,187.01 40,679.76
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Opening Transfer out Other
Projects Budgets Increase Ending Balance
Balance to Fixed assets decrease
SEY1 SNS2-400T Press 1,898,355.73 1,213,931.32 683,876.57 1,871,534.08 26,273.81
X4 HM Evap 7,629,316.90 2,736,784.64 3,948,959.96 6,669,850.69 15,893.51
Ford C48X assembly line 46,905,831.01 29,319,145.10 482,728.68 29,801,873.78
Nocolok Brazing Fumace 8,723,711.26 8,226,058.58 135,438.94 8,361,497 .52
ULTIMUS Double
Chamber Helium Leak 1,365,996.75 1,343,870.43 22,126.32 1,365,996.75
Test Machine
Total 24082403514  32,779.304.85 §4873.05841 1875220800 1568079127 95,319,363.90
Continued:
Accumulated Current Current
Budget used Source of
Progress status capitalization capitalization capitalization
ratio( %)} Funds
interest interest ratio (%)
64.88 Unfinished Self-raised
49.35 Unfinished Self-raised
47.63 Unfinished Self-raised
38.27 Unfinished Self-raised
55.12 Unfinished Self-raised
68.57 Unfinished Self-raised
93.50 Unfinished Self-raised
50.65 Unfinished Self-raised
90.00 Unfinished Self-raised
77.53 Unfinished Self-raised
72.00 Unfinished Self-raised
77.80 Finished Self-raised
99.97 Finished Self-raised
87.63 Unfinished Self-raised
63.54 Finished Self-raised
95.85 Finished Self-raised
100.00 Finished Self-raised

3) Impairment of Construction in progress in current period: None.

(3) Engineering Material: None.
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13 Intangible assets

(1) Intangible assets

Nen-patent
Items Saftware Land use right  Trademark right Patent right Totai
techinalogy
1. Total otiginal value
(1] Begsnning bafance 134,996,60548  34,186.444.73 933,608.68 13,078,085.85 196,625.116.15 379.822062.89
{2] Increase in the current
5.017.669.80 14579673090 15481440020
periad
- Purchase 6,957,73932 28,460.58 6.986,199.99
Transfer of FA. 322,414.39 32241439
- Translation differences
of faretgn currency 1,737,516.09 3,608,509.87 534602596
statement
Internal R & D 142,159,760.45 142159 76045
(3) Decrease in the cutrent
99,394,70 566 L666.004,08
period
Disposal
- {Others 99,394.70 1.566,609.38 1,666.004.08
(4] Ending balance 143916800.58  34,186,44673 23380868 1307806585 237.67 3297040951
2. Accumutated amortization
(1) Beginning balance 128,216,594.49 8.460,617.28 30348783 4.250.377.93 152,009,122,55 29324020008
(2} Increase in the current 9,406.498.07 1.142,695.39 493,380.87 1.307,808.59 2099853877 3294897169
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Non-pateat

Items Software Land use right  Trademark right Patent right Total
technology

period

Pravision 7.550,912,98 1.142,695.39 33,380487 1,307,608.59 18,302,089.13 28.296.884.96

Transfer of FA 241.365.52 241,36552
- Translation differences

of foreign currency 1.614,219.57 2,696,415.6% 431066931

statement
{3) Decrease in the current
pern 5856540 $21.559.59 S80.174.99
- Disposal
- Others 50,565.40 521,559.59 280,124.99
(4} Ending balance 137.564,527.16 960331267 396.868.70 S.A88106.57 172486101.73 32560899578
3. Provision for impairment
loss of intangible assets
{1) Beginning balance 3,525,000.00 3.525.000.00
{2) increase in the current

2806918.08 w800,916.08

period
3) Decrease in the current
pertod
{4) Ending balance 9,331,918.08 933191808

4. Total book value of

intangible assets
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Non-patent

Items Software Land use right  Trademark right Patent right Total
technology
{1} Ending hook value 635235342 2458313406 53693996 151989933 15003721786 19802954485
{2) Beginning baok value 678201099  25,723829.43 630.320.85 B827.707.32 4109099360 2309686281

(2) Land use rights without certificate of title: None.
14, Development expenditures

{ncrease ih current perind Decrease in current period

Beginning Internal Recorded in
ltems Transfer out to Ending Bafance
Balance development Other increase current profits AGther decrease
intangible assets
costs _or losses
Fard C48Y 17.409,637 42 14,748,160.34 72,563,553.90 54,721,351.66
To&L663 57.238,443.11 35,982.03145 85,973.383.00 7.247,091.50
21381 Ford Radiatar TOC's 73,740,606.27 -22,563,553.90 1.177,052.37
21474 Ford V713 Aux
3,363,878.85 8,622,341.96 11,986,220.62
HVAC
21498 - PSA CMP FRONT
112,189.46 945,315.47 1,057,504.93
HVAC
71501 - PROJECT
3,025,60359 8.855,699.75 11082,303.34
FRANKLIN
21519 Project Silver
10,441,069.25 £0,441,069.25
{Teslz)
ISUZU RU30/RT64 372,728.14 5508071 427.808.87
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Increase in current period

Decrease in current period

Beginning Tnternal Recorded in
Jrems Transfer aut to Ending Balance
Balance development Other increase current profiis Othter decrease
Intangible assets
Costs R or Josses

RTOC MY18 3.753,534.72 387.805.73 4,141,34045
X451 1.235.742.16 499,808.26 1,735,550.42
HM EVAP 75.443.6% 7.794.66 83.23835
RTOC MY1%2 2,596,591.58 268,436.94 2,865,028.52
JLR 1663 Front 1.400,363.29 144,682.25 £,545,045.54
VW T6 LHD 894,514.04 92,418.04 986,932.08
VW Té RHD £16,159.72 12,000.50 128,160.22
RTOC MY20 896,305.49 266,374.39 1,162,679.68
Manifakd 531,404.28 52.461.29 58386557
Chiller ES6 1.335,327.12 137962.65 1,896,505 44 276,784.31
VPl ES6
Proton §X11 HVAC 2,339,18983 684,677.60 3,023,867.43
VR24 3,43848 494.94 393342
L663 Rear 395,185.93 40,829.64 43601557
Franklin 8780224 87,802.24
ES8 Front & Rear

Evap V713 51,479.40 5147940
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Increase in current perind

Decrease in current period

Boginning Internal Recorded in
liems Transfer ant to Ending Balance
Balance development Other increase curvent profits Othey decrease
Intangible assets
€Osts or losses

Evap SILVER 16350448 163,504.48
BA[C FOTON $300

4,781,734.05 330,356.56 6,361.65 5,105,728.96
Car/SUV KVAC
BJEV C35DB candenser,

1,007.803.13 27695404 1,276,780.29 7.376.88
chilier and pipe
CATL Battery 859 BUS

8,890,076.82 33977153 8,612,373.33 8,510.22 808,964.80
Bartery Cooling System
Bus Battery Caoling

5,187,713.29 503903242 148,68087
System (SEW/BRW)
CJLR D8 L551 5.568.552.3% 2,401,971.72 7.970524.11
CjLR D8 PTC Heater 715.474.15 6543191 780.906.06
M3ET 54,880.20 2.016,724.892 B1,130.77 2,080,000.00 482.2%
Chery - CC25 SUV HVAC
14,352,181.99 744,731.03 14,103,101 80 22,511.22 971,300.00

and PTC
FAW X40 EV300 2952,111.89 386,230.94 2.425,039.65 339045 a09,912.73
FMC EV Vebicle HVAC 730,147.00 38901297 1892392 1,108,236.05
FM{ EV Vehigle BVAC 150,805.95 150,805.95
Geely KX11 HVAC 1860,447.39 3,751,924.33 171,72027 5,440,651.45
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Increase in current period

Decrease in current period

Heginning internat Recorded in
Items Transfer out to Ending Balance
Balance development Other increase current profits Other decrease
Intangible assets
costs . or lusses
Geely PMA HVACE HP
3,530,818.14 5.918.014.64 28633737 9,162,49541
Systemt
Geely FS11
2,972,202.70 1,951,695.87 56,117.67 4,867,781.90
Radiators&Condenser
Geely NL-3B HVAC 939,966.67 2,146,83596 B3,029.77 3.003,832.86
Geely LX-2 HVAC and
1,195,404.68 1,195,404.68
Condenser
Geely BX1E HVACand
3.191,721.53 339621704 113.641.32 6,474,317.25
Condenser
Geely CX11 HVAC 1,045,071.25 2,817,763.83 107,628.79 3,755.206.27
Geely GE12-A HVAC 483,172.78 4,942.337.01 216,501.68 5.206,008.11
GEELY NL-4AB 911,447.27 3.992.007.26 4,835,215.73 75,238.74
Geely NL-4AR Candenser 34,428.70 1,135472.49 1,119,961.58 49,939.61
Geely PMA EFLE Rear
1,230,628.36 7284682 1,157.781.54
HVAC
JLR L6563 heater core 1.006,387.94 530,331.50 54542043 70,370.75 920,928.16
IMC CX743BEV Heat Pump
885,408.93 47,020.04 938,38889
System
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In¢rease in current period

Decrease in current period

Beginnhing Internal Recorded in
ltems Transfer out to Ending Balance
Balance development Other increase current profits Other decrease
Intangible assets
costs or losses
NextEV ES6 & ES8+18
2.454,358.09 £410,288.43 1,044069.66
Fragrance System
NextEV ES8£18 Heat Pump
875,914.86 62,882.12 813.03274
System
£56 NG Heat Pump 17,463,801.00 §,308568.29 7.326,286.9% 15,446,082.40
SAIC IM31 HVAC 2572,794.15 1.949.771.93 80,024.92 2,641.509.43 1,861,031.73
SAKC A+ HVAC 3,970,924.06 4,108,692.91 155.095.49 3.264,15094 4,660,370.54
VW T6 heater core 959,205.16 549.432.06 453,693.14 104,018.25 45092583
Toal 202.046050.14 143,930393.04 142.150,76045 210467510 30.222,573.60 15247983403
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15. Goodwill

(1) Initial value of goodwill

Name of the investee or Increase in Decrease in
Beginning balance Ending balance
matters forming goodwill 2018 2018
Air International Group 454,804,306.30 454,804,306.30
Total 454,804,306.30 454.804.306.30
(2) Impairment of goodwill
Name of the investee or
Beginning balance Increase in 2019  Decrease in 2019 Ending balance
matters forming goodwill

Air Internationat Group 4,598,734.79 108,428,09528 113,026,830.07
Tota! 4.598.734.79 108,428.095.28 113,026830,07

{3) Information about the asset group or asset group combination in which the goodwill is

derived from

Book value of

goodwill Component Book value

Asset group or combination

Recognition Method of Variation
goodwill in 2019

In May 2015, the Share Purchase Agreement
of Air International Group was made by and
between the Company and AITS L.P., and

The product praduced by the
asset group in which the
goodwill is located has an

341,777476.23  agreed that the Company acquired 100.00% 686,549,721.17  active market and can generate Nane

of equity of Al US, Al Luxembourg and Al
Belgium, which was assessed by Yinxin
Assets Appraisal Co., Ltd.

an independent cash fiow,
which can be identified as a
separate asset proup,

(4) Explanation of goodwill impairment test process, key parameters and method

Key parameters and reasons

Book value of i “.Iethod of Significant assumptions
mpairment test of
goodwill - and reasons
goodwill
Key assumptions for the use
of future cash flow
Present Earning  discounting methods: Itis
34LTT7A7623  yojie Method expected that the asset group

will maintain its capacity in
the next five years

{5) The impact of goodwill impairment test

The average growth rate during the test period was
10.65%, the growth rate of the stable period was 29,
the average gross profit margin was 16.98%, the
profit before interest and tax rate was -0.55%-6.70%,
and the pre-tax discount rate was 12.36%. The
recoverable amount of the a2sset group was measured.

It is predicted that the recoverable amount of the Air international group is CNY 1,033,420.70
thousand which is lower than the asset group's CNY 686,549.70 thousand and the book value of
the goodwill of CNY 450,205.60 thousand and CNY 1,136,755.30 thousand. The asset group's
provision for impairment in current period is CNY 103,334.60 thousand; In this period, due to
the deferred income tax liabilities / asset reversal related to operating long-term assets, the
amount of goadwill impairment reserve amounted to CNY 5,093.50 thousand; therefore, a total

of CNY 108,428.10 thousand of goodwill impairment reserve was recognized.
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16. Long-term deferred expenses

Amount
Beginuing Increase in Other Ending
Items amortized in
balance 2019 decrease balance
2019
Improvement of fixed asset
3,660,274.67 411,583.55 £92,051.11 204,36833 3,175,438.78
leased in
Customer tools of RTOC
Amortization 54,740.87 54,740.87
Project costs 414,780.93 373,669.92 41,111.01
Others 1,818,011.08 2,101,563.21 1,385,093.67 2,534,480.62
Total 5.947,807.55 2513.14676 230555557 20436833 5751030.41

17. Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities

(1) Deferred income tax assets that are not offset

Ending balance Beginning balance
Deductible Deductible
Items Deferred tax Deferred tax
temporary temporary
assets assets
difference difference
Provision for asset
21,195,675.03 3,275,081.53 10,737,634.07 2,576,212.27
impairment
Offset unrealized profits due - a9
to intercompany sales 5,005,326.74 805,654,04 12,030,362.32 2,937,516.36
Deductible losses
178,225,902.65 38,334,116.12 107,005,459.18 23,774,670.72
Employee compensation
accrued but not paid 3,859,557.99 751,708.10 1,801,483.31 371,315.76
Accrued expenses
< e 16,758,548.78 3,023,556.96 14,395,448.93 3,335,255.51
Acerued expenses
7,885,666.01 1,588,645.90 7.300,785.49 1,661,054.88
Asset evaluation decrement
from business combination 851,627.84 157,40758 756,390.81 189,099.43
under different control
Disposal of assets that were
not deductible before tax
but will be deductible 3,828,957.72 574,343.66 3,828,957.72 957,239.43
before tax in the future
period
Deferred revenues
1,188,000.00 178,200.00 1,320,000.00 330,000.00
AIUS R&D expenses tax
preference  are  carried
29,348,286.32 6,163,140,13 20,835,207.04 4,603,809.85

forward to future years of
use
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Ending balance

Beginning balance

Deductible Deductible
Items Deferred tax Deferred tax
temporary temporary
assets assets
difference difference
Impact of deductible
temporary differences
arising from inventories 1,762,439.26 370,112.24 1,368,550.90 202,396.86
under Section 263A of the
US Tax Code
Tax deductible under the tax
4,444,657.56 $33,378.09 4,420,889.39 976,852.98
bilateral agreement
Total 27435464590 5615530435 18580116916 4201542405

(2) Deferred income tax liabilities that are not offset

Ending balance

Beginning balance

Deductible Deductible Deferred
ltems Deferred income
temporary temporary income tax
tax liabilities
differences differences liabilities
Asset evaluation increment
from business combination 105,962,195.90 19,437,131.21 102,771,206.44 24,562,318.34
under different control
Difference of tax due to
18,926,458.50 3,974,556.28 9,099,471.18 2,010,646.45
depreciation of fixed assets
Total 124,888.654.40 23.411.687.49 111.870877.62 2627296479
{3) Details of unrecognized deferred income tax assets
Items Ending balance Beginning balance
Deductible temporary differences 9,842,979.81 8,049,519.33
Deductible losses 363,131,149.41 371,688,215.34
Total 37297412922 379.737,734.67

{4) The deductible losses unrecognized as deferred income tax assets will be expired in the

following year

Items Ending balance Beginning balance Comments
2019 3,338,090.20
2020 1,068,592.70 1,068,592.70
2021 20,205,326.89 20,205,326.89
2022 11,593,152.55 12,669,167.13
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Items Ending balance Beginning balance Comtments
2023 10,673,142.24 14,264,443.07
2024 | 15,337,183.14
Be carried forward for furturelSs
36,378,810.15
years under USA tax law
Unlimjted peried under Australia
304,253,751.89 284,363,785.20
tax law
Total 363131,149.41% 37168821534
18. Other non-current assets
{tems Ending balance Beginning balance
Advances for equipment and prajects to
8,248,272.92 6,594,516.69
suppiiers
Development projects with compensation 11,973,905.54
TJotal 20.222.178.46 £.594.516.69
19. Short-term loan
(1] Short-term loan classification
Items Ending balance Beginning balance
Credit loan 7,764,865.27
Mortgage loan 155,444,523.05 7,406,944.00
Guaranteed loans 134,159,302.20 148,983,044.00
Total £97.368,690.52 156,389.988.00
20. Notes payable
Items Ending balance Beginning balance
Commercial acceptance bill 516,072.93 1,194,344.05
Bank acceptance bill 69,405,845.88 111,586,737.15
Total £9921.91881 112.781,081.20

At the end of the period, there was no notes payable that was due but unsettled.
21. Accounts payable

(1) Presented by category

{tems Ending balance Beginning balance
Materials 241,575,985.60 273,241,476.01
Total 241,575.985.60 27324147601
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(2) Significant payables with the aging over 1 year at the end of the period: None.

22. Receipts in advance
(1) Presented by category

Item

Ending balance

Beginning balance

Receipts in advance

Total

4,345,060.00

4.345.060.00

(2) Significant ending balance of receipts in advance with aging over 1 year: None

23. Employee benefits payable

{1} Presented by category

20,367.71

20.367.71

Beginning Increase in the Paymentin the
Items Ending balance
balance current period current period
I. Short-term compensation 10,865,303.66 153,202,610.39 151,014,256.26  13,053,657.79
[i. Liabilities in defined contribution plan for
4,327,678.28 23,826,246.81  28,148,691.33 5.233.76
post-empioyment benefits
11l. Termination benefits 79,519.67 79,519.67
IV. Other welfare within 1 year
(2) Short-term compensation
Beginning increase in the Payment in the
Items Ending balance
balance current period current period

L. Wage, bonus, allowance and subsidy

II. Employee welfare

I1L. Social insurance premiums

Incloding: 1. Medical insurance premium
2. Industrial injury insurance premium
3. Birth insurance premium

IV, Housing fund

V. Labor-union expenditures and personnel
education funds

VL Shart-term compensated absences
VIL Short-term profits sharing plan

VIII. Other short-term compensation

Total

10,208,697.05
75,000.00
354,702.01
310,282.60
11,758.10

32,661.31

226,904.60
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119,897,349.58
12,673,514.59
14,338,6882.98
13,765,491.26
267,148.36

306,243.36
2,757,843.39

3,535,019.85

117,052,388.84
12,748,514.59
14,693,584.99

14,075,773.86

13,053,657.79

278,906.46

338,904.67

2,757,843.39

3,761924.45



(3) Liabilities in defined contribution plan for post-employment benefits

Increase in the

Payment in the

Item Beginning balance current period current periad Ending balance
Basic pension plan 653,226.20 5,738,238.04 6,391,464.84
Unemployment and pension 411.713.09
insurance 16,330.70 7134 428,043.79
Retirement savings {overseas) 3,658,121.38 12,513,653.71 16,166,541.33 5,233.76
Enterprise annuity payment
(supplementary pension 5,162,641.37 5,162,641.37
insurance}
Total 432767828 2382624681 £8,148,691.33 523376

(4) Termination benefits

Item

Amount pafd in the current
period

Termination benefits

Total

24. Taxes payable

79,519.67
79.519.67

Ending amount unpaid

Tax ltem Ending balance Beginning balance
1. Corporate income tax 420,032.28 1,538,595.97
2. Value-added tax 8,843,611.85 159,510.54
3.Tax for land use right 7,309.70 9,230.10
4. Property tax 18,055.01 18,31433
5. Urban maintenance and construction tax 260,468.21 427,700.11
6. Educational surcharges 254,247 51
7. Local educational surcharges 3,969.49 167,521.23
8. Withholding individual income tax 2,690,152.30 2,722,142.8G
9. River management fee 2,893.68 2,893.68
10. Other taxes 204,170.96
Tatal 12.246.496.52 2,504,331,23
25. Other payables
(1) Summary
Classification
ftems Ending balance Beginning balance
Interest payable 557,181.98
Dividend payable
Other payables 406,758,420.03 161,114,684.96
Tota] 40731560201 16111468496
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(2) Interest payable

Presented by category.

Items Ending halance Beginning balance
Interest payable on short-terin borrowings 557,181.98
Total 237.181.98

Significant overdue interest payments: None.
(3) Dividend payable: None.
(4) Other payables

1) Presented by nature

Nature of amount Ending balance Beginning halance
Intercompany leans 323,308,794.41 125,363,577.29
Current accounts among entities 12,528,868.31
Consulting services 9,054,698.30 113,216.48
Payment for equipment and projects 9,466,200.26 24,229,794.01
Accrued expenses 10,615,818.53 8,567,577.18
Payable on behalf of the advance 5971,671.41 511,981.25
Freight payable 3,107,425.95
Deposits and security deposit 26751288 101,885.84
Others 32,037,029.98 2,226,652.91

Total 406.758,420.03 161,114684.96

2) Ending balance of significant other payables with the aging over 1 year

Item Ending balance Reasons for unpaid or carrying over
Company 1 121,742,453.21 Unsettled
Total 121,742.453.21

26. Non-current liabilities due within one year

Item Ending balance Beginning balance
Long-term borrewings maturing within 1 year 16,184,300.37
Total 16.184,300,37

27. Long-term loans

Interest rate
Item Ending balance Beginning balance
range(%)

Credit loan 2,645527.29 2.5%
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Interest rate

Ttem Ending balance Beginning balance
. range(%s]}
Pledged loan 12.859,871.28 31,504,970.12 4.25%-4.75%
Total 1550539857 31.904.970.12
Note: No overdue long-term loans at the end of the period.
28, Long-term payables
(1) Summary
Item Ending balance Beginning balance
Long-term payables
Special payables 10,377,027.18 6,806,282.72
Total 10377.027.18 6.806,282.72
(2) Special payables
Presented by category
Beginning Increase inthe Paymentin the Ending Cause of
ltem
balance current period current period balance formation
R&D R&D projects

6,806,282.72 39,101,311.26
compensation

35,530.566.80

10,377,027.18
reimbursement

Total £80628272 3910131126  35.530.506.80 1037702718
29. Long-term employee benefits payable
{1} Summary
Item Ending balance Beginning balance
Termination benefits
Other long-term benefits 2,198,648.38 1,279,067.48
Total 2159864838 1,279067.48
(2} Termination benefits: None.
(3) Other long-term benefits
ltera Ending balance Beginning balance
Other long-term benefits overseas 2,198,648.38 1,279,067 48
Total 2.198,648.38 127906748
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30. Estimated liabilities

(1) Presented by category

tem

Ending balance

Beginning balance

Causes

Product guality guarantee

16,860,129.38

Based on the calculation

14,763,945.02 of sales and quality

assurance
Total 16.860,129.38 14.763.945.02
31. Deferred revenues
Increase in Payment in
Beginning Cause of
ftem the current the current Ending balance
balance forimation
period period
See government
Government grants 1,320,000.00 132,000.00 1,188,000.00 &
subsidy details
Total 1.320,000.00 13200000 1.188,000.60
Projects involving government grants:
New subsidy Current Related to
Beginning Current other Other Ending
Item amount in non-operating assets
balance income changes balance
this peried income J/revenue
NextEV ESg SUV F/R
R 1320,000.00 132,000.00 1,188,000.00 Re;::fst"
HAVCPTCHCM,Comp
Total 1,320,000.00 132,000.00 1,188.000.00
32. Paid in capital
Beginning balance Ending balance
Investors Proportion Increase Decrease Proportion
Capital Capital
(%) (%)
Total 859.161.408.36 100.00 859.161.408.36 100.00
Shanghai Shengyou
859,161,408.36 100.00 859,161,408.36 100.60

Investment Co., Ltd.
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33. Other comprehensive incomes

Item

Year 2018

Less: Amotnt recognized as
ather comprehensive incoine
for previgus years and
transferred in the profit or
loss in current period

Less;
Income
tax
expenses

Amgunt
hefore
income tax in
2018

Beginning
balance

'

10 parent
company after
the tax

Attr
to minovity
sharcholders
after the tax

Ending balance

1. Other comprehensive incamé that
cannot be reclassified inta profits or
fosses later

Including: Changes 2rising from the
re t of net liabilities and net
assets of defined benefit plan

Share in sther cuaprehensive fncome of
the investee that cannot be reclassifed
into profit or loss under the equity
methad

2, Other comprehensive income to be
classified inte profits ar losses later
Including: $hare in other comprehensive
income of the investee that will be
recliassified ints profit or Joss under the
equity methad
Gains or losses on changes in fair value
of available-for-sale financial assets
Gains or losses arising  from
fassificati of held rity
investments as financial assets avatlable
{or saie
The effective portion of cash flow
hedging gains and losses
Translation differences of foreign
currency financial statements

Iotal

31,329,041.58 1356520098
332904189 1356520998
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34. Undistributed profits

Item

Amount for the current
period

Amount for the previous
period

Retained earnings in the previous period

Total adjusted opening undistributed profits (with
"+" for increase and "-" for decrease)

Opening undistributed profits after adjustment

Plus: Net profits attributable to owners of parent
company in the current period

Less: Appropriation of statutory surplus reserve

Appropriation of discretionary  surplus
reserves

Appropriation of general risk reserve

Cotnmaon stock dividends payable

Common stock dividends transferred into
capital

Qthers

Clasing retained earnings

35. Operating incomes and operating costs

140,616,963.25

140,616,963.25
-225,206,118.27

151,608,672.31

151.608,672.31

1,457,040.88

12,448,749.94

140.616963.25

Amouit incurred in the previous

Amount incurred in the current period

Item

revenues

period

costs revenues costs

Principle operating

863,498,556.03

revenues

Other operating revenues

112,714,027.40
Total 976,212.583.43

36. Taxes and surcharges

Amount incurred in

802,521,480.53

100,771,292.67

903,292,773.20

Amount incurred in

1,001,347,412.20

99,928,499.12

914,045,376.20

55,032,372.23

ftem the current period the previous period Charging standard
U o ntenance - and 192,865.85 256,765.64  Refer to Note [V. Taxes for details
Educational surcharges 81,694.32 227,544.93 Refer ta Note 1V. Taxes for details
Property tax 72,051.28 82,344.32 Refer to Note 1V. Taxes for details
Use tax for urban and town lands 67,323.00 134,646.00 Refer to Note [V. Taxes for details
vehicle and vessel tax 3,572.40 345.60 Collected as stipulated by the state
Stamp duty 359,931.40 442,995.40 Collected as stipulated by the state
Construction fund for water works 4.854.89 4,140.85 Collected as stipulated by the state
Others 900.21 Collected as stipulated by the state

Total 182.293.14 L149.082.95
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37. Financial expenses

Nature of expenses

Amount incurred in the current period

Amount incurred in the previous

Interest expense

Less: Interest income

Bank service charges

period
11,113,547.08 10,490,677.62
8Y7,869.65 318,238.72
Exchange gains and losses 6,810,107.18 -4.083.461.86
192,235.84 348,699.37
Totai 17.228.02045 643767641

38. Other incomes

Granted projects

NextEV £58 SUV F/R HAVC,PTC,HCM,Comp
Third-generation service charge
Financial Industry Support Award
Others

Total

39. Investment fncome

Amount incurred in the

current period

Amount incurred in the

previous period

Related to assets

Jrevenue

1,100,000.00
934,329.79
20,000.00

88.46

205441625

Amount incurred in the current

2,552,000.00

138,756.59

2:690,796.59

Related to revenue
Related to revenue
Related to revenue

Related to revenue

Sources of income from investment

Amount incurred in the previous

period period

Long-term equity investiment incaome
calculated under the equity methiod

Total

40. Credit impairment loss

Item

21,033,028.58 27.949,469.37

2103307858 27,949,469.37

Amount incurred in the current Amount incurred in the previous

period period

Bad debt lasses of bills
Bad debt osses of accounts

Bad debt losses of other
&y
41. Asset impairment Joss

Item

-3,140,884.14

174,043.92

=2.966.840.22

Amount incurred in the cerrent
_period

Amount incurred in the previous
period

1. Loss on bad debt

I Losses on inventory impairment

785,467.69

-4.502,146.34 -2,164.595.14

87



Item

Ameunt incurred in the current Amount incurred in the previous

period period
III. Losses on fixed assets impairment -332,850.00
IV. Losses on construction in progress
impairment
-5,806,918.08

V. Losses on Intangible asset impairment
V1. Losses on goodwill impairment -108,428,095.28
Total 2119,070.009.70

42. Gains from asset disposal

Amount incurred in the

-4,598,734.79

:2.077.862.24

Amount incurred in the

Item
current period previous period
Losses fram non-current assets disposal -244,871.78 -46,767.21
Toral 24487178 :46,767.2]
43. Non-operating incomes
(1) Classifications
Amount included into
Amount incurred in the Amount incurred in the
[tem non-recurring profits and
current period previous period
losses
Others 469,829.98 57.871.37 469,829.98
Total 469,829.98 57.871.37 469.829,98

44, Non-operating expenditures

Amount incurred in Amount incurred in

Amount included into

[tem non-recurring profits and
the current period the previous period
losses

Subtotal for non-current assets disposal 73,909.99 64,431.72 73,909.99
Including: loss on fixed assets disposal 73,909.99 64431.72 73,909.99
Fines and late fees 12.61 12.61
Public welfare donation expenditure
Caompensation lass 356.63 356.63
Government granted return
Others 5,137.83 253,570.78 5137.83

Total 79.417.06 318.002.50 79417.06
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45.Income Taxes
{1) Presented by category

Item

Current income taxes

Deferred income Taxes

Amount incurred in the
current periad

Amonnt incurred in the

__previgus period

-992,570.67

-17,120,631.41

46, Additional information about cash flow statement

{1) Reconciliation from net profit to cash flows from operating activities

Amount incurred in the

6,049,382.48

-20,969,545.57

Amount incurred in the

item ) . .
current period previous period
L Reconciliation of net profits into cash flow
from operating activities
Net profits -225,206,118.27 1,457,040.88
Plus: Provision for assets impairment loss 122,036,849.92 597786224
Depreciation of fixed assets, depletion of
oil-and-gas assets and depreciation of productive 42,434,411.39 26,008,986.82
biological assets
Amortization of intangible assets 28,396,886.96 19,693,256.28
Amortization of long-term deferred 2,505,555.57 2,017,19894
expenses
Loss from disposa!l of fixed assets, intangible
assets and other long-term assets 24487178 46,767.21
{with "-" for profits)
. Loss on retirement of fixed assets {with 73.909.99 6443172
-"for profit)
Loss on change of fair value (with "-"for
profit)
Financial expenses (with "-” for profit) 4,358,444.28 5415,219.09
Less on investment (with *-”" for profit] -21,033,G28.58 -27.949,469.37
i Decrease on deferred income tax asset (with -14,139,830.30 -20,636,600.64
- for increase)
Increase on deferred income tax liabilities 3.161,277.30 .332,944.93

{with "-" for decrease}
Decrease on inventory (with " for increase)

Decrease on aperating receivables {with "-"
for increase]

Increase on operating payables (with " for
decrease]

Others

Net cash flow from operating activities

11. Investing and financing activities that do
not involve cash receipts and payments:

Transferring debts into capital
Convertible bonds due within 1 year
Fixed assets under financing lease
I11. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents:

Ending balance of cash

-30,878,173.04
-20,139,906.04
-18,831,655.44

13,782,647.19

:119.556.461.89

38,332,693.94
89

-13,423,779.59
-29,049,429.18
75,667,378.72
8,597,113.74

53.55303193

45,866,652.36



Amount incarred in the Amount incurred in the

Item . . .
current period previous period
Less: Beginning balance of cash 45,866,652.36 51,966,644.10
Plus: Ending balance of cash equivalents
Less: Beginning balance of cash equivalents
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2753395842 =6.099.991.74
(2) Composition of cash and cash equivalents
Item Ending Beginning
balance balance
1. Cash 3 2.693.94 45,866,652.36
146,011.17 25713257

Including: 1. Cash on hand
2. Deposit in bank available for payment at any time
3. Other monetary funds available for payment at any time
4. Available amount due from central bank
5. Amount due from other banks
6. Amount for inter-hank lending
11. Cash equivalents
Including: Bond investment due within three months

I11. Ending balance of cash and cash equivalents

Including: Cash and cash equivalents that parent company or subsidiaries of
the company are limited to use

47. Assets with restrictions on the ownership or right of use

38,186,682.77 45.609,519.79

Items Ending book value Reason for restriction
Cash and cash equivalents 128,591,446.86 Pledge . Bank acceptance bills margin
Fixed assets -Buildings 22,321,426.95 Mortgage borrowings
Intangible assets- Land use rights 25,120,074.05 Mortgage borrowings

Total 176,032.947.86

VIIL. The scope changes of consolidation

1. Business combination not under the common control: None.

2. Business combination under the common control: None,
3. Reverse purchase: None.

4. Disposal of subsidiaries: None.
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5. The scope changes of consolidation caused by other reasons:

There are two newly established subsidiaries included in scope of consolidation: Chuzhou Air
International Thermal Systems Co., Ltd. and Chengdu Air International Thermal Systems Co.,
Ltd..
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VIII. Equity in Othet Entities

L. Rights and Enterest in subsidiaries

{1} Scope of the company:

Principal place of N Nature of Sharcholding ratio (%) Praportion of Ways of
Name of subsidiary business Registration place business Direct Indirect voting rights {%)  obtaining
At International  Thermal Investment .
[Laxernbourg) S.AR.L Luxembourg 25A, Boulevard Royal, L-2449 Luxembourg industry 100 100 Acquisition
Fernande Montes de Oca 126, Col. Condesa, Investment
Alr Systems, 5. de RL.de CV. Mexica Del. Cuauhtemac, ZC 06140, in Mexico City, industry 100 100 Acguisition
Federal District
Air  International  Thermal De-Saint-Exupéry-StraZe 8, Condor Platz, Investment e
Systems (DE) GinbH Germany 60540 Frankfurt 2m Main industry e 160 Acquisition
Air  Jnternational  Thermal . . . Investment .
(Relginm) erm Belgium Louizalaan 331-313, 1050 Brussels, Belgium industry 100 100 Acquisition
Air  International  Thermal . 50-80 Turner Street, Port Melbaurne, VIC Investment L
(China) Pty Ltd Australia 3207, Australia industry 100 1030 Acquisidon
. . . efo Cimglobal Business, 33 Edith Cavell Investment icies
Huxley Holdings Limited Mauritius Street, Port Louis, Mausitius ind 100 160 Acqeiisition
Air Internztonal {Shanghai) . No.108, Chunguang Raad, Xinzhuang . -
Co., Ltd. Chira Industrial Park, Minhang District, Shanghai Manufacturing 100 100 Acquisition
Air [nternational {Nantong) 5 666 Wenchang Road, High-tech industrial : Newly
Cao., Ltd, Chira Development Zone Nantong Manufacturing 100 100 established
Air Internatianal Hainan Co, No, M-25, Haima (Phase 1} Industrial Park, N _
Lid China Haikou High-tech Zone Manufacturing 100 100 Acgquisition
. No.6 Jiangpu Road, Chache Economic
Chuzhou Air  international N -, . ; Newly
Thermal Systerus Ca., Lt China Development Zone, Lai'an County, Chuzhou Manufacturing 100 100 establiched
<Clty, Anhui Province
‘The second span on the west side of No. 1
N N Factory Building, No. 298, South Fourth
g,;z:it:s ;:;;S ](:r::em;nnnal China Road, Chengdu Economic and Technolog Manufacturing 100 106 est[:le);fsli\:cd
¥ g Development Zone {Longquanyi District],
Sichuan Province
. 50-80 Turner Street, Part Melbourne, Investment -
AIGL International Pty Lid Australia Victoria 2207, Australia industry 100 100 Acquisition
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Name of subsidiary
Alr  International  Thermal
{Australia) Pry Ltd
Air  internabonal  Thermal
Systems R&D [Shanghai) Co.
Lid.
AITS Australia Pty Ltd

Air  international  Thermal
Systems (Thatland) Ltd

AITS US Inc

Air international Thermal {US)
Subsidiary ne.

Alr International {US] Inc.

Air  interpational  Thermal
{UYnited Kingdom > Limited

Air  international Thermal
{Slovakia) sro.

Princlpal place af . Nature af Shareholding ratio [%) Propuartion of Ways af
business Registration place business Direct Indirect voting rights (%)  oblaining
5 50-80 Turner Street, Port Melbourne, VIC
Australia 3207, Australia Trade 160 100 Acquisition
. Raom 06, No, 28, Lane 259, Tiandeng Road, -
China Xuhit District, Shanghai R&D center 100 100 Acquisition
Air International Thermal Systems, 50-80 [TS—
Australia Turner Street, Part, Melkaurre VIC 3207, ndus 186 100 Acquisitian
Australia sy
500/46 Moo 3, Hemaraj Eastern Seaboard
y Industrial Estate, Tasit Sub-districe, . _—
Thaijand Pluakdaeng District, Rayong Province, Manufacturing 100 100 Acquisition
Thailand
2711 Centervilie Road, Suite 400, City of investment
Usa Wilmington, County of New Castie, Delaware indus 100 100 Acguisition
19808, USA it
27’11 Centervitie Road, Syjte 400, City of Investment o
Usa Wilmington, County of New Castle, Delaware industry 100 0o Acguisitivp
19808, USA ik
2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400, City of
UsA Wilmington, County of New Castie, Delaware Manufacturing 100 100 Acquisitian
19808, USA
Temainly produces
. N N autamobiies,
United Kingdom 3; Diplomat, Pahsady 29/A , Bratislava B11 engines. vehicle 100 100 . c:;:vl)r: .
accessories and eatnsie:
equipment
o . " Engineeting design
Slovakia 10 Norich Surect. London, United Kingdo™: ™ 5nd industrial 100 100 by
manifacture stablishe

(2] Significant non-wholly owned subsidiaries: Nore,

{3] Significant non-wholly owned subsidiaries’ major financial information: None.
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2. Rights and Interest in joint venture arrangements or joint ventures

(1) Major joint ventures or associates

Shareholding Accounting
ratio (%) treatment
Name of joint Principal method in
Business
ventures or place of Registration place investments
nature
associates business Direct Indirect in joint
ventures or
associates
[. joint ventures
Building 1-4, Neo.1, Gaobachu Road,
Equity
1. SAl China Shuangfengqiac  Avenue, Yubei Manufacturing 50.00
method
District, Chongqing
2357245, Village Hinjiewadi, Taluka
Equity
2. AITTR India Muilshi, Pune, Maharashtra, India, Manufacturing 50.00
method

411027

(2) Principal financial information of major joint ventures

Balance as at December 31, 2019/

Balance as at December 31, 2018/

ltems Amountin 2019 Amount in 2018
SAlL AlI'TTR SAI AITTR
Current assets 639,068,805.53 19,888,281.03 723,477,379.61 15,921,391.25
Including: Cash and cash
193,830,194.35 281,601.36 271,739,773.80 865,220.00
equivalents
Non-current assets 221,818,440.44 20,309,122.72 210,642,022.08 18,488,180.94
Total assets 860.887.245.97  40.197.403.73 934,119.401.69  34,409.572.19
Current liabilities 451,774,284.78 21,854,068.09 552,001,928.73 15,846,412.68
Non-current liabilities 27,501,380.69 12,950,535.13
Tatal lighilities 47927566547  21.854.068.09 6386  15.846,412.68
Minority equity
Total equity attributable to owners
381,611,580.50 18,343,335.66 369,166,937.83 18,563,159.51
of the parent company
Share of net assets calculated by
190,805,790.25 9,171,667.83 184,583,468.92 9,281,579.76

the shareholding ratio

94



Balance as at December 31, 2019/ Balance as at December 31,2018/

Items Amount in 20619 Amount in 2018
SAl AITTR 5al AITTR
Adjustment events -818,627.03 -41.847.04 -810,632.4¢4

- Goodwill

- Unrealized profits of internal

) -810,627.03 -810,632.44
transactions I
- Others -41,847.04 :
Book value of the equity E
. 190.805.790.25 8,361.040.80 184.541,621.88 847094732 ?
investment in joint ventures i
The fair value of equity investment
of a joint venture with publicly
quoted prices
Operating income 741,309,895.07 39,041,745.04 893,221,445.03 24,814,450.65
Financial expenses -1,623,457.66 -3,166,527.47 203416
Income tax expenses 6,540951.77 -31,071.43 10,839,682.54 -9,638.36
Net profit 37,031,871.64 -71,079.59 57,413,377.82 755,345.60
Discontinued operating tet profit
Other comprehensive income -148,744.26 -308,363.04
Total comprehensive income 37,031,871.64 -219,823.85 57,413,377.82 446,982.56
Dividends received from joint
15,000,000.00 21,000,000.00

ventures in current period

(3]} Description of significant limitations on the ability for joint ventures or asseciates to

transfer funds to the company

As at the balance sheet date, there is no significant limitations on the ability for joint ventures or
associates to transfer funds to the company.

(4) The excess deficit for joint ventures or associates

As at the balance sheet date, there is no excess deficit for joint ventures or asscciates.

(5) The unrecognized commitments regarding to joint ventures

As at the balance sheet date, there is no unrecognized commitments regarding to joint ventures.

(6] Contingency for joint ventures or associates
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As at the balance sheet date, the company has no contingency related to joint ventures ar

associates.
IX. Related Party Relationship and Transactions

1. Criteria for recognition of related party:

Parties are considered to be related when one controls, jointly controls or significantly
influences the other or two or above parties are under the common control, jeint control or
significant influence.

2. Related information of parent company of the Company

Name of parent Company Registration Legal Registered
Business nature
company type place representative Capital (10,000)
Room B2, 2nd

Floor, Building 2,

Limited No. 317 Meigui
Shanghai Shengyou

liability North Road,  Zhang Yongming [nvestment management CNY87,000
Investment Co., Ltd.

company China {Shanghai)

Pilot Free Trade

Zone
Continued
Shareholding ratio of
Voting ratio of the parent Ultimate controlling party of  Organization
the parent company
company to the company (%) the Company Code
to the Company (%)
Aotecar New Energy Technology 9131011508414
100.00 100.00

Co., Lid. 350XF
3. Subsidiaries of the Company
See Note VIIL 1, Rights and Interest in subsidiaries.
4. Joint ventures or associates of the Company
See Note VIIL 2. Rights and Interest in joint venture arrangements or joint ventures.
5. Information of other related parties of the Company

Relationship ef other related parties with the
Name of other related parties

Company
Air Internaticnal TTR Thermal Systems Limited joint ventures of the Company
South Air International Co., Ltd. Joint ventures of the Company
Mudanjiang Futon Automotive Air Conditioner Co,, Ltd. Under the same ultimate controlling party
Nanjing Aotecar New Technalogy Co., Ltd. Under the same ultimate controliing party
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Relationship of other related parties with the
Name of other related parties

Company
Nanjing Aaveac New Energy Technelogy Co, Ltd. Under the same ultimate controlling party
Aotecar New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. Under the same uitimate contrelling party
Aotecar Morocco New Technoalogy Co.,Ltd Under the same ultimate controlling party
Kunshan Aotecar New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. Under the same ultimate controlling party
Nanjing Aotecar Xiangyun Cooier Co,, Ltd. Under the same ultimate controlling party g

6. Transactions of related parties

(1) Statement of purchase of commodities/receiving of labor services/ sales of commoadities

and provision of labor services

1) Statement of purchase of commodities/receiving of labor services

Amount incurred
Contents of concerned Amount incurred in the

Name of company in the previous
transaction current period
period
Nanjing Aotecar New Technaology Co., Procurement of
1,236,039.00
Ltd. commodities
Aotecar New Energy Technology Co.,
Purchasing services 4,112,160.99 3,527,774.54
itd.
South Air International Co,, Ltd. Purchasing services 2,698,248.60 21,6850.17
Ajr  International TTR Thermal Procurement of
127,685.99
Systems Limited commoaodities
Kunshan Aotecar New Energy Purchasing services
4,198,113.08
Technology Co., Ltd.
Nanjing Aotecar Xiangyun Cooler Co,,  Purchasing services
6,446,756.27

Ltd.

2) Statement of sales of commodities and provision of labar services

Amount incurred
Contents of concerned Amount incurred in the
Name of company in the previous
transaction current period
period

Nanjing Aotecar New Technology

Sales of Goods 8,928,969.53 12,696.73
Co., Ltd.
Nanjing Aoveac New Energy

Sales of Gaods 2,224,067.59 3,515,179.65
Technology Co, Ltd.
South Air Internatienal Co., Ltd, Sales of Goods 15,0600.00
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Amount incurred
Contents of concerned Amount incurred in the
Name of company in the previous
transaction current period
period

Afr International TTR Thermal
Rendering Services 1,652,346.94 173,166.46

Systems Limited

{2) Associated entrusted management/contracting and entrusted management/out-contracting
None,

(3) Lease from related parties

1) The Company acts as lessee:

Rent in current Rent in previous
Name of lessor Type of lease
period period
Aotecar New Energy
Building 2nd land lease 3,512,852.49 1,710,000.00
Technolegy Ca,, Ltd.
(4) Collateral information of related parties
1) The company acts as the guarantor: None.
2} The company acts as the vouchee:
Guarantee Unpaid Maturity of
Name of guatantor Start date End date
amount amount guarantee
Nanjing Aotecar New
50,000,000.00 2017-8-10 2020-8-10 [Inexpired

Technology Co., Ltd.

Note: The Company has no associated guarantees with the related external parties.

{5) Fund lending among related parties

As of December 31, 2019, the compnay received a total of CNY 322 million from Nanjing Aotecar

New Technology Co., Ltd..
(6) Assets transfer, debt restructuring among related parties: None.

(7) Other transactions among related parties: None,

98



7. Receivable and payable of related parties

{1) Receivables from related parties

Ending balance HBeginning balance
Ttem Related party
Book value E;_Z‘:g_i? Baok Value ﬁiﬁ:ﬁ’?
Accounts South Air International Co., Ltd. 532,264.48 2661322  1,708,04054 29,862.47
receivable
Accounts Air International TTR Thermal 1,802,649.15 9766063 242572521  186,01590
receivable Systems Limited
Accounts Nanjing Aotecar New Technoiogy 6531.198.29 631437070
receivable Co., Ltd. [ e
Accounts Nanjing Aoveac New Energy
receivable Technology Co, Ltd. 13,486.87 2,577,968.09
Accounts Mudanjiang Futon Futomative Air
receivable Conditioner Co., Ltd. 3,127,000.00
Other receivables ég‘eff; New Energy Technology 748,350.61 12,613.06
Other receivables lgl:n{i?dg Actecar New Technolegy 59.456.37

Other receivables South Air International Co., Ltd. 1,907,498.23 1,134,000.81 13,140,81890 1,622,722.44

Air International TTR Therinal
Systems Limited

Agtecar Morocco New
Technology Co.Ltd

Other receivables 448,642.64

Other receivables 6,279,060.71

(Z) Payables to related parties

: Beginning
Ttems Related party Ending balance balance

Accounts payable Nanjing Aotecar New Technology Co., Ltd. 336,179.10 174,075.20
Accounts payable Aotccar Mew Energy Technolegy Co, Ltd. 5,472,165.88 3,978,429.08
Accounts payable South Air International Co., Ltd. 16,295.10 371,453.38

Mudanjiang futon automotive air
Accounts payable conditioner Co,, Ltd. 796,494 .52
Other payables Nanjing Aatecar New Technelogy Co., Lid. 324,742,081.97 125,403,416.09
Other payables Aotecar New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. 212,019.13 231.600.00
Other payables Kunshan Aotecar New Energy Technology 4,450,000.00

Co., Ltd.
Other payables Nanjing Aotecar Xiangyun Cooler Co,, Ltd, 6,833,561.62

8. Related parties’ commitments

None.

9. Others

None.

X. Share-based payment

None.

XI. Commitments and Contingency

None,
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XIL Subsequent events after Balance Sheet Date

As of the date of approval for reporting of the financial statements, there were no significant
non-adjustment events incurred post the balance sheet date that influence the reading and
understanding of the financial statements.

XIII Other Significant Matters

None.

XIV. Notes to main items of financial statements of the company

1. Long-term equity investment

As at December 31,2019

As at December 31,2018

Item
Baok balance Impairment Book value Book balance Impairment Book value
Investments in
857,089,755.50 857,089,755.50 857,086,755.50 857,089,755.50
subsidiaries
Total 857.089,755.50 857.089.75550 857,089,755.50 857,089,755.50
1) Investments in subsidiaries
Provision for Ending
Beginning Increase in Decrease in
Investee Ending balance  impairment in balance of
balance 2019 2019
2019 impairment

Air international
857,089,755.50

Group
Total

857,089.755.50

2) Investments in joint ventures or associates: None.

100

857,089,755.50

857.089,755.50
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